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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERES

ECOGREEN aspires to

become the utmost value creation
company in China and in the world,
with leadership in a number of finely
segmented industries.

PRENRATERIE 2N —(EAKEEELRE
AR WEREZHADTEEKRSREE

Review

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to announce the annual
results of EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Group Limited (“EcoGreen”
or the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013. Turnover
rose by 16% to about RMB1,227 million. Earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”) increased by
17% to RMB282 million, up from the RMB240 million in 2012.
Profit attributable to shareholders rose by 17% to RMB149
million. Basic earnings per share rose by 17% to RMB30.9 cents
compared with the RMB26.5 cents for 2012. In appreciation of
the shareholders’ support, the Board resolved to declare a final
dividend HK7.1 cents per share, which together with the interim
dividend of HK1.49 cents per share for the first half of 2013, will
bring the total dividend for 2013 to HK8.59 cents per share. The
proposed final dividend is subject to the approval by shareholders
at an annual general meeting. The dividend for 2012 was HK5.1
cents.

\ 2 \ ECOGREEN FINE CHEMICALS GROUP LIMITED « AiaE#{t TEEAR A A

=1 8

RAABRERESS  AMERERELAEEHEZZ
E—=ZF+T_A=Z+—BLFEZEE - BHR -
EETBHNRBI22IETARYE BT ——F L
FF16% 0 KA E - BB TEREHEZEF
([EBITDA]) B2 82 B T ARY  ®B-ZZT—Z—FH
240B T AR LB FFIRIZE1T% ¢ AR & )i F) 18
M17% ZE149EB T ARY « FREZXREF A30.9
DPARE T —FHNEREREF26.55 A
RE  #BE17% - BEAREAREOIE 59
BEEMREAFERERETRTIEMN - HA
FREREERREAFTAGIE  BRTHREE
f%1.4978 1l - NFERRE D IRETE ATIS.597%
il F—FEREAERS B -



In 2013, the global economy remained uncertain. On one hand,
the United States was in slow economic recovery while Europe
was in a gradual upswing, on the other hand emerging markets
was in the deceleration of economic growth such as China. As a
result, different industries experienced varying degrees of growth
and decline. Although China’s aroma chemical industry recorded
considerable growth in the first half of the year as downstream
demand recovered, the industry’s growth for the whole year was
still moderate. Furthermore, clients have widely adopted tight
control measures on working capital, and just-in-time inventory
and purchasing management in the aftermath of the global
financial crisis. Other difficulties included the consistent renminbi
appreciation, raw material cost fluctuation and the industry
competition. The Group made immense efforts to take on these
challenges to achieve an annual growth comparable to that in the
first half of the year.

EcoGreen as a customer-oriented company, continued to provide
a total solution that encompasses research and development,
procurement, production and supply chain management for its
clients during 2013. The Group won client’s trust and support
with its stable supply of quality products and services of high
professional standards.

During the year under review, the Group expanded its integrated
service business in its supply chain management to satisfy the
huge customer demand. The integrated service business used
to be a complementary value-added service which satisfied the
clients’ needs for natural aroma chemicals and key upstream
resources. After years of service, the integrated service business
has now integrated with the Group’s proprietary products and
adopted a light-asset model in its supply chain management
businesses. Presently, the Group’s integrated service business
has won its client’s trust and recognition, but it still needs to
actively enhance its capabilities for processing information and
delivering goods. It also needs to broaden the scope of services
and increase the number of suppliers and expand its customer
base. Only then will the business be able to combine with the
Group’s proprietary products to become its new growth driver.
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In terms of raw materials procurement strategy, the Group
continued to tap China’s abundant supply of natural raw materials
such as turpentine for its production of aroma chemicals.
Meanwhile, it has also developed a series of petroleum-based
aroma chemicals in recent years. In response to the changes in
China’s economy and the continuous appreciation of its currency
in the past several years which have deeply impacted the cost
structure of China’s natural raw materials and resources, the
Group has been actively implementing a strategy of diversifying
its raw material procurement internationally. During the year,
the Group started establishing a mechanism which enables an
internationalized and balanced access to the reliable and stable
supply of various raw materials. The move has enhanced the
Group’s competitiveness in the global aroma chemical industry.

To enrich its product portfolio, apart from producing the
turpentine-based aroma chemicals for daily necessities, the
Group has also consistently developed a number of new
petroleum-based aroma chemicals of green-note and dairy note.
Sales of such new products grew substantially and accounted for
almost half of the Group’s aroma chemicals sales revenue and
26% of its total turnover. The new products became one of the
key contributors to the Group’s business growth in the year. The
Group will soon put its new production plant in Changtai, Fujian
Province into operation and is now expanding the production
capacity of its plant in Gulei. The expanded production capacity
will enable the Group to have new products mass production and
hence introduce them in markets, turning them into one of the
growth drivers behind the Group’s consistent business growth.

As to its production facilities, the Group upgraded the energy-
saving and environmental protection systems of its principal
Haicang plant to ensure a sustainable operation. The Changtai
plant first phase facilities has already began its full operation for
the whole year of 2013, and has been increasing its capacity
gradually. This will support the production of new products
of aroma chemicals and specialty chemicals. The scale of
production in Changtai plant will be expanded in the next several
years to enjoy the benefits of economies of scale.
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To capture the opportunity in the aroma chemicals market
recovery, the Group tapped the financial market to fund its
development plans. It secured the support of more than ten
international and regional banks and successfully obtained a
syndicated loan of US$66 million with a maturity of three years to
fund a number of its major projects in Changtai, Huanggang and
Hangzhou for the next several years. The loan also complemented
the Group’s internal reserves for starting its investment in the
expansion of production capacity of Gulei production plant.
Moreover, the Group followed a prudent fiscal guideline to
manage and hedge against risks associated with the renminbi
appreciation and the interest rates upswing and downswing
movements, and hence enabling the Group to reduce the risks
and costs of financing.

Outlook

The year 2014 marks the 10th anniversary of the Group’s listing
on Hong Kong’s stock exchange. The Group prides itself on the
rapid development it experienced in the past decade. Although
the global financial crisis that originated in the United States has
temporarily interrupted the Group’s growth, its management
made timely adjustments to its development strategies and
enabled the Group to weather the difficulties in the trough
business cycle with perseverance in the past two years, thus
ushering in a new period of growth and taking the Group to the
next stage of development. On the occasion of the Group’s 10th
anniversary listing | have mapped out a blueprint for EcoGreen’s
sustainable development.

As a conscientious enterprise dedicated to corporate social
responsibilities, EcoGreen is committed to its mission of bringing
health and safety to the people and the earth. In the coming
decade, we will build on our achievement in the past ten years
and work to attain the targets of “enabling the company to
prosper, upgrading its businesses, and bringing happiness to our
staff”. EcoGreen aspired to become the utmost value creation
company in China and in the world with leadership in a number of
finely segmented industries. We also aim to raise the employees’
standard of living and increase returns to shareholders at the
same time.
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The Group’s development strategies for the next three years and
business plans are as follows.

1. Road to Dedication — developing a full spectrum aroma
chemicals business.

(i) EcoGreen will radically transform the business model of
its core business of aroma chemicals from the traditional
production and sales to an innovative “smart-production
and supply chain service” business model, to satisfy
the overall demand and needs of the industry. The new
business model is leveraging on its big data information
system, which will radically change the industry’s
competitive landscape.

(if) The Group will simultaneously diversify and globalize its
raw material procurement. Its production and supply chain
will be able to use the petroleum-based and turpentine-
based resources, enabling a globalized supply chain
management. In particular, the Group will actively innovate
in the turpentine spot market trading model by building
an commodity exchange platform that allows the Group
to closely follow the prices of turpentine. This will help
the Group attain the targets of its key raw materials
management.

(i) The Group has been preparing for the expansion of its
production plant in Gulei, which will serve as a strategic
production base to realize the Group’s ambition of building
a sizeable and solid business. With its geographical
advantage, the Gulei project will become a magnet for
investments from leading petrochemical enterprises from
both sides of the Taiwan Strait. Specifically, the stable
and ample supply of petroleum-based raw materials
from petroleum refining industry will constitute a key
raw material source for production of EcoGreen’s higher
value-added products such as key fine chemical raw
materials and aroma functional chemicals. Meanwhile,
the industry park will also be able to support the global
operations of crude sulphate turpentine deep processing.
The new strategic production base will also be an ideal
place for the Group to develop its new business model for
its full spectrum aroma chemicals business, realizing its
innovative strategy of combining the smart-production and
the supply chain management services.
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(ii

(i)

(i

Road to Entrepreneurship — industrial transformation and
upgrade

EcoGreen has already built up rich resources during
its extensive experience in the industries of flavour and
fragrance, food ingredients and other related downstream
industries, and is thus well-equipped to carry out its
industrial transformation and upgrade. In addition, the
more extensive adoption of information technology and
e-commerce will also be conducive to the move.

The Group has already embarked on the new natural
seasonings business, thus realizing its strategic
development of extending from the upstream businesses
of aroma chemicals to the downstream business of
seasonings. This strategy will enable the Group to build
a series of downstream business platforms that directly
satisfy consumer needs.

The Group’s strategy of extending its business scope to
the downstream of the value chain as part of its industrial
transformation and upgrade will not cause any competition
with its existing clients. On the contrary, the Group may
be able to form new types of strategic partnerships with
them. It will also seek opportunities for cooperation in the
downstream industries.

Road to Innovation — reinvigorate its traditional businesses

The Group will continue to develop and innovate
technologies and techniques for its traditional aroma
chemical business by combining scientific research and
technological innovation. The move will support the
implementation of the “smart-production” strategy and
enhance the product differentiation and cost advantage. It
will also enable the Group to invent more environmentally-
friendly production techniques for the chemical industry
and obtain the related patents.

The Group has just begun its research on technologies
of biosynthesis and technological innovation in naturals
extraction. The scope of the applications of such
technologies will include personal care, food and
medicine. Such endeavour will facilitate the Group’s
development of more natural-based products and their
applications, thus promoting human beings’ health and
enriching their lifestyle with a wide range of high value-
added products. A value chain thus established will be
beneficial to human health and ecology.
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(i) The Group will establish a new research and development
centre of “Xiamen Biomedical Research Base”. The scope
of the research will include organic synthesis, biosynthesis,
catalysis in chemical and biological reactions, the naturals
extraction and mixing, analysis and tests. The research
and development centre is scheduled to be gradually put
into full operation in the first half of 2014, and world-class
talents will be introduced into it to manage the research,
development and innovation and reform the system. The
centre will also carry out cooperation with a number of
nationally and internationally renowned universities and
research institutes.

The Group will move up a gear in its development in the next
three years, and it will adopt a series of measures to reform
its businesses and innovate its business model in order to
accomplish its transformation and upgrade. The Group will
leverage its own strengths and resources to achieve such a
strategic goal, and will at the same time seek opportunities for
mergers and acquisitions as well as cooperation and strategic
partnerships that will result in synergy. Such measures will
expand the scale of the Group’s operations and raise its operating
efficiency. We have witnessed EcoGreen’s strong growth in
the past decade and have now geared up for a new round of
developments in the next decade. We are determined to embark
on a new stage of development and rekindle the entrepreneurial
spirit, and have been ready to work hard with our dedication
to our business and passion for building new businesses and
innovation. | am confident of the EcoGreen’s success in its
transformation and upgrade.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYS’I§
BEENWR DN

Business Review E Sl

The Group derives its revenue primarily from two operating AEBHBATEREMELLDE : (ML2REE
segments: (i) manufacturing of chemicals including the production (BHRAUENHEEFTELLER XARAEV MK E
and sales of aroma chemicals, naturals and specialty chemicals; mh) o M(i)E R MR FEHERTS - BB D IR WS AT
and (ii) resources and supply chain services. Breakdown of mr

revenue by operating segments is as follow:

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Revenue N
Manufacturing of chemicals {LEREE 939,973 840,418
Resources and supply chain services ER N e g AR TS 287,322 216,953
Total revenue I A 4828 1,227,295 1,057,371
A further breakdown of turnover by product is as follows: EmERE/TOT

Turnover
EHERE

RMB’000 % of total | RMB’000 % of total
Tt (CECE T CEE
ARE BipLE ARE Btk

Manufacturing of chemicals 1I: MmEE

Aroma chemicals FE(ER 697,436 57% 628,140 59%
Naturals RAEY 154,677 13% 146,684 14%
Specialty chemicals BRI 2m 87,860 7% 65,594 6%
939,973 77% 840,418 79%

Resources and supply chain &R &% L fE AR 75
services 287,322 23% 216,953 21%
Turnover E=E 2 1,227,295 100% 1,057,371 100%
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Business Review (continued)

In 2013, all four business segments of the Group recorded growth
with varying degrees. Among them, the growth of the speciality
chemicals and the resources and supply chain services is the
most prominent, both of them have increased more than 30%
when compared to last year. The Group’s turnover for the year
was RMB1,227 million, an increase of 16% from the previous
year. Excluding contributions from the resources and supply
chain services, sales derived from the manufacturing segment has
increased by 12%. Profit attributable to shareholders improved to
RMB149 million by 17% from the previous year. Basic earnings
per share were approximately RMB30.9 cents.

Manufacturing of Chemicals
Aroma chemicals

For the year ended 31 December 2013, turnover of aroma
chemicals increased by 11% to RMB697 million (2012: RMB628
million), accounting for 57% of the Group’s turnover (2012: 59%)
and with a gross profit margin of 27.1% (2012: 27.7%).

Aroma chemicals continued to be the Group’s core products
during the year under review, and constituted a stable and major
income source for the Group. Aroma chemicals are primarily
used as functional ingredients and key components in many daily
consumer goods, with a combined positive effect of its diversified
applications and the development in the emerging markets,
market demand continued to rise. Certain new aroma and food
flavour chemicals launching lately were further recognized by
the customers and well received in the market. The new series
of products have already contributed RMB354 million (2012:
RMB249 million) to the Group’s revenue, with a profit margin of
approximately 31%, which is higher than the profit margin of our
fragrance chemical products and represents one of the sources in
the growth of Group’s profitability.

Naturals

In respect of the naturals products, apart from existing natural
pharmaceutical raw materials, the Group has been actively
engaged in the development of food additives business for
the production of food ingredients, fast food, frozen food and
pet nutrition food, which is produced with purification and bio-
conversion technologies from natural produces. Naturals mainly
include seafood, meat and mushroom extracts.
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Business Review (continued)

Manufacturing (continued)
Naturals (continued)

During the year under review, the Group’s natural extract
products maintained steady growth. Turnover from sales of
naturals increased by 5% to RMB155 million (2012: RMB147
million), accounting for 13% (2012: 14%) of the Group’s sales.
Gross profit margin was 27.1% (2012: 26.9%).

Specialty chemicals

Besides the chiral pharmaceuticals and specialty chemicals, the
Group also applies similar advanced technologies of synthesis
to produce agrochemical specialty chemicals, which will later be
turned into the kind of eco-pesticide.

During the year under review, turnover of specialty chemicals
business recorded a significant growth to RMB88 million (2012:
RMB66 million), increased by 34% when compared to last year,
accounting for 7% (2012: 6%) of the Group’s sales. Gross profit
margin was 45.4% (2012: 46%).

Resources and Supply Chain Services

The Group has been striving for the integration of upstream
turpentine resources and expansion of supply chain
management, with a view of systemic competitiveness and
meeting customer needs more effectively. This Resources and
Supply Chain Services business has developed into a mature
trading platform for upstream materials, aroma, flavour and
fragrances’ products. It pairs up the demand side and supply
side of the aforementioned products in the global market. During
the year, revenue from the resources and supply chain services
business increased by 32% to RMB287 million (2012: RMB217
million), accounting for 23% (2012: 21%) of the Group’s revenue.

Financial Review

Turnover

The Group recorded an increase of 16% in its turnover for the
year ended 31 December 2013, which amounted to RMB1,227
million. In analysing the sales in 2013, despite the increase of the
sales volumes by approximately 20% over last year, the drop in
selling price of certain products and the change of product mix
had led to the turnover lagging behind the sale volumes.
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Financial Review (continued)

Gross Profit

During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit totaled
RMB304 million, increased by 17%. Gross profit margin increased
from 24.5% in 2012 to 24.7% in 2013.

By the products category, the gross profit margin of aroma
chemicals decreased from 27.7% in 2012 to 27.1% in 2013,
while naturals increased from 26.9% in 2012 to 27.1% this year.
The profit margin of specialty chemicals decreased from 46% in
2012 to 45.4% in 2013. The gross profit margin of resources and
supply chain services increased from 7.2% in 2012 to 11.5% in
2013.

Operating Income and Expense

In the year ended 31 December 2013, selling and marketing
expenses accounted for 2.2% of the Group’s turnover (2012:
2.6%) whereas the administrative expenses accounted for 4.2%
of turnover (2012: 4.6%). Under the Group’s effective cost-
cutting measures, the operating expenses remained stable in
these two years. As a result of the economies of scales caused
by the increase of revenue, these expenses to sales ratio further
declined.

Finance Costs - Net

As a significant portion of the Group’s borrowings is denominated
in United States dollars, the appreciation of Chinese Renminbi in
this year has led to the significant increase of the exchange gain
to RMB9.67 million (2012: RMBO0.12 million). On the other hand,
the higher interest rates for bank loans obtained in China and
the higher gearing level in this year have resulted in an increase
in finance cost; while at the same time, higher interest income
was earned from the bank deposits, resulting in an overall decline
of the net finance cost by approximately RMB2.95 million as
compared to last year.

Taxation

Tax expense of the Group for 2013 was RMB48.7 million (2012:
RMB35.9 million). Effective tax rate of the Group is 24.6% (2012:
21.9%).

Profit for the Year

Profit for the year in 2013 was RMB149 million, representing an
increase of 17% compared with RMB128 million in 2012. EBITDA
for the year was RMB282 million, represented 17% increase as
compared to RMB240 million in 2012.
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Financial Review (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the year under review, the Group’s primary source of
funding mainly included the cash generated from financing
activities. For the year ended 31 December 2013, net cash used
in operating activities amounted to RMB100 million (2012: net
cash generated of RMB232 million). The Group had net cash used
in investing activities of RMB57 million (2012: RMB50 million).
During the year under review, the net cash inflow from financing
activities amounted to RMB225 million (2012: RMB71 million).

As at 31 December 2013, the average inventory turnover days,
average trade receivable turnover days and average trade
payable turnover days were 59 days, 132 days and 74 days
respectively (2012: 61 days, 128 days and 116 days).

The Group’s financial position remains very solid and healthy
during the year under review. As at 31 December 2013, the
net current assets and the current ratio of the Group were
approximately RMB1,177 million (2012: RMB755 million) and 3.0
(2012: 1.9) respectively.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had borrowings and bills
payable of approximately RMB736 million and RMB82 million
respectively (2012: RMB497 million and RMB238 million). Among
the Group’s borrowing, outstanding short-term borrowings
amounted to RMB436 million (2012: RMB494 million). As at 31
December 2013, the Group’s ratio of borrowings to total equity,
was approximately 55.9% (2012: 41.8%) and the Group’s net
cash balance, being pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents less borrowings and bills payable amounted to
RMB115 million (2012: RMB198 million).

With the positive cash inflow from the Group’s operations, its
available banking facilities and its existing cash resources, the
Group has very strong liquidity and sufficient financial resources
to meet its commitments, working capital requirements and future
investments for expansion.
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Financial Review (continued)

Treasury Policies and Exposure to Fluctuations in
Exchange Rates

The Group’s assets, liabilities, revenues and transactions are
mainly denominated in Renminbi, United States dollars and
Hong Kong dollars with its operation mainly in the PRC. As at
31 December 2013, the Group’s borrowings of approximately
RMB281 million and RMB446 million were denominated in
Renminbi and United States dollars, respectively.

The Group’s foremost exposure to the foreign exchange
fluctuations was caused by the revaluation of Renminbi during
the year under review. The Group’s export sales are, in majority,
denominated in United States dollars. Nevertheless, the Group
has not experienced any material difficulties or effects on its
operations or liquidity as a result of fluctuations in currency
exchange rates during the year. The Group will conduct periodic
review of its exposure to foreign exchange risk and may use
proper financial instruments and financing arrangements for
hedging purposes when considered appropriate.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 424 full-time employees,
among whom 418 were based in the PRC. For the year under
review, the total employment costs incurred for 2013 including
directors’ emoluments amounted to RMB42.8 million. The Group
has established its human resources policies and procedures
with a view to deploying the incentives and rewards of the
remuneration system. The remuneration package offered to the
staff is appropriate for the duties and in line with the prevailing
market terms. Staff benefits, including medical coverage and
provident funds, are provided to employees. The Group has also
established effective performance evaluation system in which
employees are properly rewarded on a performance-related
basis under the Group’s salary and bonus system. The Group
has adopted a share option scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to the management, key technician and
other eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations.

By the Order of the Board
Yang Yirong
President

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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Executive Directors

Mr. YANG Yirong

Chairman and President

Chairman of Nomination Committee

Mr. Yang, aged 52, is the founder of the Group. He is responsible
for strategic planning and formulation of overall corporate
development policy for the Group. Mr. Yang holds a Bachelor’s
degree in science, majoring in chemistry from Huagiao University
in 1982. Prior to founding the Group in 1994, Mr. Yang has
extensive experience in the fine chemical manufacturing and
trading and has more than ten years of experience in natural
organic chemistry research.

Mr. GONG Xionghui

Senior Vice President — Engineering Project Management

Mr. Gong, aged 50, is responsible for project construction and
strategic investment development. Mr. Gong holds a Master’s
degree in chemical engineering from Xiamen University and
has accumulated over 20 years of experience in fine chemicals
industry and qualified as an ISO 9000 auditor in the PRC in 1998.
He joined the Group in September 1999.

Ms. LU Jiahua

Senior Vice President — Group Financial Control

Member of Remuneration Committee

Ms. Lu, aged 47, oversees the finance and accounting and
human resources functions for the Group in the PRC. She has
over 20 years of experience in accounting, financial management,
administration management and internal auditing in a number
of pharmaceutical and fine chemical manufacturing enterprises.
Ms. Lu holds a Bachelor’'s degree and a Master’s degree in
economics and corporate management from Xiamen University.
She joined the Group in April 2002.

Mr. HAN Huan Guang

Senior Vice President — Group Strategic Investments and Capital Markets
Member of Remuneration Committee

Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. Han, aged 52, responsible for Group strategic investments,
capital markets and investor relations. He graduated from
Zhongshan University (1 11X5) with a Bachelor’s degree
in biochemistry in 1982 and obtained his Master’s degree
in Business Administration from University of Technology,
Sydney, Australia in 1993. He has over 20 years’ experience in
corporate finance, merger and acquisition, infrastructure and
new technology developments, management of listed and non-
listed companies in the PRC and overseas. Over the years, he has
been a Director, and then Managing Director in China Everbright
Medicine Co. Ltd. (a subsidiary of China Everbright Holdings
Group), Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. and in other senior
management positions in Hong Kong, Singapore and Mainland
companies. He has been appointed as a Councilor of the China
Society of Biotechnology, and also member of some professional
associations in the region. Mr. Han joined the Group in September
2005 as a Non-executive Director, and became an Executive
Director from May 2006.
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Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. LIN Zhigang

Vice President — Group’s Aroma Chemicals Business

Mr. Lin, aged 43, is responsible for the management of the
Group’s operation in aroma chemicals business. He holds
a Bachelor’'s degree of economics obtained from Xiamen
University. Prior to joining the Group in June 1996, he worked in
a foreign investment enterprise and has concrete experience in
sales and marketing management, business development and
production management.

Non-executive Director

Mr. FENG Tao

Vice Chairman

Mr. Feng, aged 46, is the Chief Executive Officer of NewMargin
Ventures Capital Co. Ltd., which is a leading venture capital
management company in China. Commencing from 1999, Mr.
Feng has been serving as the vice president officer (23 1) of
The Foundation of Science & Technology for Development of the
State Planning Committee, State Economic & Trade Commission
of the PRC (FEARAEFMBEBRRLEEEZ 5ZE S 2) and Chinese
Academy of Sciences. As one of pioneer of venture-capital of
China, Mr. Feng possesses extensive experience and knowledge
of both domestic and overseas markets. Mr. Feng was awarded
the title of “Top 10 most influential venture capitalists in China” in
the “Asia-Pacific Venture Capitalist Summit and Most Influential
Venture Capitalists in China Award Ceremony” in April 2005. He
obtained a Master’s degree in science from the Department of
Statistics and Applied Probability of University of Alberta in June
1992. He joined the Group in September 2005.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. YAU Fook Chuen

Chairman of Audit Committee

Member of Remuneration Committee

Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. Yau, aged 56, is a practising accountant and has over
20 years of experience in public accountancy practice which
covers company secretarial service, accountancy, auditing and
taxation. He is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Yau is currently the proprietor of Yau & Wong,
Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong. He was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director in February 2004.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. WONG Yik Chung, John

Chairman of Remuneration Committee

Member of Audit Committee

Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. Wong, aged 47, among being the Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, was also served as an Independent
Non-executive Director of Golden Resources Development
International Limited, CDW Holdings Limited and General Steel
Holdings Inc, companies listed in Hong Kong, Singapore and the
United States respectively. He is a professional accountant by
training with more than 18 years of experience in auditing and
corporate finance work, with extensive exposure to the business
enterprise in the PRC. Mr. Wong is currently the director to
TMF China, a firm provides a variety of professional outsourcing
solutions to an international client base investing in PRC. Mr.
Wong graduated from the University of Melbourne. He is a fellow
member of the Australian Society of Certified Public Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He also obtained a PRC Certificate of Independent Directorship
in 2002. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director in February 2004.

Mr. LAU Wang Yip, Derrick

Member of Remuneration Committee

Member of Audit Committee

Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. Lau, aged 52, is the managing director of a financial
institution. He obtained a master degree of management science
in accounting and he has extensive experience in investment
banking.

Mr. XIE Rong Guo

Vice President — Strategic Resources Management

Mr. Xie, aged 51, Head of Strategic Resources Management
Center. Since he joined Ecogreen, Mr. Xie has been the
management positions in purchase department, logistic
department and commercial department and the general
manager of strategic resources management. He has excellent
professional knowledge and rich experience in supply chain
management and strategic resources management.
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Mr. Y| Zhi Xiong

Vice President — Corporate Administration

Mr. Yi, aged 52, Head of Corporate Administration. Mr. Yi
majored in fine chemicals in Tianjin University with a Bachelor’s
degree of engineering. He has been the head of management
in a large manufacturing company before he joined Ecogreen in
September 1998.

Mr. WONG Cang Yan

Head of President Office

Mr. Wong, aged 56, Head of President Office. Mr. Wong received
Bachelor’s degree of management science from National Chiao
Tung University. Before joining Ecogreen in July 2007, Mr. Wong
has 28 years work experience in enterprise management. During
2003 to 2005, he was the management consultant of Ecogreen,
helping the Group to build the daily management system.

Mr. YAN Da Yi, David

General Manager — Marketing and Sales of Aroma Chemicals

Mr. Yan, aged 53, General Manager of the Marketing and Sales
of Aroma Chemicals, Mr. Yan holds a Bachelor’s degree of
Engineering. Mr. Yan has 27 years work experience in Canada,
Hong Kong and China. Before joining the Group in May 2004,
he worked for eight years in a well-known software company
in Hong Kong, for positions in marketing, sales, servicing and
administrative departments.

Mr. XIAO Li Yuan

Aroma Chemicals Operations Manager

Mr. Xiao, aged 50, Director of Aroma Chemicals Operations.
Before joining the Group in February 2001, he was the deputy
manager in a large chemical enterprise. Mr. Xiao has more than
27 years experience of production management.

Mr. TU Hong Bin

Aroma Chemicals R&D Manager

Mr. Tu, aged 46, Aroma Chemicals R&D Manager, who received
a Ph.D degree in 1995 from Beijing Institute of Technology.
After the postdoctoral research experience with Professor
Alan.R.Katritzky at University of Florida of USA (2001-2004),
he joined Ecogreen in May 2005. He has more than 14 years
experience in organic synthesis and methodology including 3
years preparation and production of Heterocyclic compounds.

Mr. LAM Kwok Kin

Financial Controller and Company Secretary

Mr. Lam, aged 40, is the financial controller and company
secretary of the Company. He holds a Bachelor’'s degree in
accountancy and is a fellow member of both the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Group in October
2003, he worked with an international accounting firm for seven
years and was the financial controller and company secretary of
a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam has extensive
experience in auditing, accounting, budgeting and company
secretarial works.
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The board of directors of EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Group
Limited (the “Company”) (the “Board”) acknowledges the
importance of and benefit from good corporate governance
practices and is committed to improving the corporate
governance practices in order to enhance better transparency
and to ensure that business activities and decision making
processes are regulated in a proper manner to safeguard the
interests of shareholders.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles (the “Principles”), code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) and certain recommended best practices (the
“Recommended Best Practices”) as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”).

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices and is committed to complying with the Code
Provisions as stated in the CG Code to the extent that the
directors of the Company (“Directors”) consider it is applicable
and practical to the Company.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company
has complied with the Code Provisions under and the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
except for Code Provisions A.2.1 and A.6.7. The following
summarises the Company’s corporate governance practices and
explains deviations, if any, from the CG Code.

Responsibilities

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leading the
Group in a responsible and effective manner. The Board provides
leadership and formulates strategic policies and plans of the
Group with a view to enhancing shareholder interests while
the day-to-day operations of the Group are delegated to the
management.
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Responsibilities (continued)

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Group, including: objectives and overall strategies of the Group;
annual budgets and financial matters; equity related transactions
such as issue of shares/options and repurchase of shares;
dividend; raising of capital loan; determination of major business
strategy; merger and acquisition; major investment; annual
financial budget in turnover, profitability and capital expenditure;
review and approval of financial performance and announcement;
and matters as required by laws and ordinance.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulation are followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making request to the Board.

The Directors are continually updated with the regulatory
requirements, business activities and development of the
Company to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
Through regular Board meetings, all Directors are kept abreast
of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

The management has the obligation to supply the Board and
the various Committees with adequate information in a timely
manner to enable the members to make informed decisions.
Each Director has separate and independent access to the
Company’s senior management to acquire more information than
is volunteered by management and to make further enquiries if
necessary.

The functions delegated to management are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the management.

Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of nine members including
five Executive Directors, one Non-executive Director (the “NED”)
and three Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INED”). It
has the necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate
to the requirements of the business of the Company. There
is a strong element of independence in the Board, which can
effectively exercise independent judgement.
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Composition (continued)
The Board comprises:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Yirong (Chairman & President)
Ms. Lu Jiahua

Mr. Gong Xionghui

Mr. Han Huan Guang

Mr. Lin Zhigang

NED
Mr. Feng Tao (Vice Chairman)

INED

Mr. Lau Wang Yip, Derrick
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John

The above list of Directors is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time.

The Board’s composition covers a balance of expertise, skills
and industry experience so as to bring in valuable contributions
and advices for the development of the Group’s business. The
NED and INED together have substantial experience in fields of
auditing, legal matters, business, accounting, corporate internal
control and regulatory affairs. Through active participation in
Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving
potential conflict of interests and serving on Board committees,
all NED and INED make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Group.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
INED with at least one INED possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
INED of his independence pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all INED to be independent
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules.
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The Board (continued)

Board meetings

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to discuss the
overall strategy as well as the operation and financial performance
of the Group. A total of 4 board meetings were held during the
year. The individual attendance record of each Director at the
meetings of the Board, the Remuneration Committee and the
Audit Committee during the year ended 31 December 2013 is set
out below:

Shareholders’

Exg(#)

g
ESeNFATHERINARERERE 28
EHBRE - FRNARBTHREZSEH - B E
TE-ZH+T-AZ+-HLFE  FESERE=R
2EH FHEEeRRARERZREGERZLE
REERINT

Attendance/Number of meetings

e/ BITERRE

meeting Board meeting
REXE EZEER
Annual

General

Meeting Nomination Remuneration Audit
Name of Director (“AGM”) Committee ~ Committee =~ Committee
BEnA RRBFAE REZEE HMESE ENZES
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HTES
Mr. Yang Yirong (Chairman) BRELE(EE) 11 4/4 11 - -
Mr. Gong Xionghui BB 1/1 4/4 - - -
Ms. Lu Jiahua BRELT 1/1 4/4 - 4/4 -
Mr. Han Huan Guang BELEE 1/1 4/4 1/1 4/4 -
Mr. Lin Zhigang AR % & 1/1 4/4 - - -
NED FHTES
Mr. Feng Tao RELE

(Vice Chairman) (BI1FE) 0/1 0/4 - - -
INED BIFHITES
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen ERE2%E 1/1 4/4 1/1 4/4 3/3
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John BERALE 1/1 4/4 1/1 4/4 3/3
Mr. Lau Wang Yip, Derrick BIRESE 1/1 4/4 1/1 4/4 3/3
Notices of regular board meetings are served to all Directors THRTzeEEeeRATARNSZB2TRIRD14

at least 14 days before the meetings while reasonable notice is
generally given for other Board meetings. Agenda and Board
papers together with complete and reliable information are sent
to all Directors at least 3 days before each Board meeting to keep
the Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to make informed
decision. Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings
are kept by the Company Secretary. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable time
after each meeting and the final version is open for Directors’
inspection.
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Board meetings (continued)

According to current Board practice, any material transaction
which involves a conflict of interest for a substantial shareholder
or a Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board
at a duly convened board meeting. The Company’s Articles of
Association also contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment,
so as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors whenever
necessary.

During the year, the Directors have attended various in-house
briefings and internal or external seminars/trainings, and have
read internal or external newsletters, updates and other reading
materials covering topics such as business of the Company,
corporate governance, industry knowledge, regulatory updates,
finance and management.

Appointment, rotation and re-election of Directors

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, all newly
appointed Directors of the Company shall hold office until the next
general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election. Every
Director, including those appointed for a specific term shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years at
the AGM. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with article 108(A) of the articles of association of
the Company, Mr. Gong Xionghui, Mr. Han Huan Guang and Mr.
Lin Zhigang will retire as Directors by rotation and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election as Directors at the 2014 AGM.
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Term of appointment of NED and INED

All NED and INED were appointed for an initial term of not more
than one year and will be renewable automatically for successive
term of one year until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party or the other. All NED and
INED are subject to retirement by rotation once every three years
and are subject to re-election.

Segregation of Roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer (“CEO”)

The Company has not yet adopted A.2.1. Under the Code
Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of Chairman and CEO
should be separate and would not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and CEO should be clearly established and set out in writing.

The Company does not presently have any officer with the title
CEQO. At present, Mr. Yang Yirong, being the Chairman and
the President of the Company, is responsible for the strategic
planning, formulation of overall corporate development policy
and running the business of the Group as well as the duties of
Chairman. The Board considers that, due to the nature and extent
of the Group’s operations, Mr. Yang is the most appropriate
chief executive because he possesses in-depth knowledge and
experience in fine chemicals business and is able to ensure
the sustainable development of the Group. Besides, he is the
founder, the chairman and the controlling shareholder of the
Group since its establishment and till now. Notwithstanding the
above, the Board will review the current structure from time to
time. When at the appropriate time and if candidate with suitable
leadership, knowledge, skills and experience can be identified
within or outside the Group, the Company may make the
necessary amendments.

Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Lam Kwok Kin, is
responsible for ensuring that board procedures comply with all
applicable laws, rules and regulations and advising the Board on
corporate governance matters. He is also responsible for taking
and keeping minutes of all Board and board committee meetings.
Draft version of minutes is normally circulated to the Directors
for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and
the final version of which is open for the Director’s inspection.
Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all
Directors updated on Listing Rules, regulatory requirements and
internal codes of conduct of the Company. He has attained no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
year.
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Indemnification

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal actions against its Directors and officers. The
Board reviews the extent of this insurance annually.

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference which deal clearly with
their authority and duties. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the Company’s website and are
available to shareholders upon request.

The chairmen of the committees will report the findings and
recommendations of the committees to the Board after each
meeting. The minutes of all meetings of the committees are
circulated to the Board for information.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three INED, namely Mr. Yau
Fook Chuen (the chairman of the committee), Mr. Lau Wang Yip,
Derrick and Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John, in which Mr. Yau Fook
Chuen possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(a) To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
qualified accountant or external auditor before submission
to the Board;

(b) To review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
by reference to the work performed by the external
auditor, their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditor; and

(c) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held three
meetings with the senior management to review, consider and
approve the interim and annual financial statements, discuss
internal controls matters and the re-appointment of the external
auditor. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the Group’s
accounting principles and practices, Listing Rules and statutory
compliance and financial reporting matters.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three INED, namely, Mr.
Wong Yik Chung, John (the chairman of the committee), Mr. Lau
Wang Yip, Derrick and Mr. Yau Fook Chuen and two executive
Directors, Mr. Han Huan Guang and Ms. Lu Jiahua.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include establishing a formal and transparent procedures for
developing policy on the remuneration of the Executive Directors
and senior management, making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of Directors and senior management, to review and approve
performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time, ensuring
the remuneration packages are sufficient to attract and retain the
Directors to run the Company successfully, to avoid over-paying
and ensure no Director or any of his associates will participate in
deciding his own remuneration.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held
four meetings to review and consider the remuneration policy
and packages, including any discretionary management bonus of
the Executive Directors and senior management by reference to
market conditions, performance of the Group and the individual
and corporate goals.

Senior management emoluments

The remuneration of the senior management of the Group by
band for the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out below:

Remuneration bands
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in March 2012 and it
comprises two executive Directors, namely Mr. Yang Yirong (the
chairman of the Committee) and Mr. Han Huan Guang and three
INED, namely, Mr. Yau Fook Chuen, Mr. Lau Wang Yip and Mr.
Wong Yik Chung, John. The duties of the Nomination Committee
are, among others, to review the structure, size and composition
of the Board and to make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board and on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships. The Nomination Committee held
one meeting during the year to review the Terms of Reference of
Nomination Committee.

The management provides such explanation and information to
the Board to facilitate an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view and the
statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 42 and 43.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.
Meanwhile, the Directors are responsible for ensuring that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently; and that judgments and estimates made are prudent
and reasonable. The Board was not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might cast
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The Board has prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding the
Directors’ securities transactions on terms not less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has
been made to all Directors and all the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with all the relevant requirements as set
out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2013.
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The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system of the Group. The system
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority,
safeguards its assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
ensures the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensures compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss,
and to manage the risks of failure in the Group’s operational
systems and in the achievement of the Group’s objectives.

The Directors, through the Audit Committee, have conducted
an annual review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
control of the Company and its subsidiaries. The review covers all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions.

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditor of
the Company received approximately RMB1.59 million for audit
services provided to the Group. The external auditor did not
provide any non-audit service to the Group during the year under
review.

General Meeting

Under the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a general
meeting will be taken by poll except where the Chairman, in
good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely
to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a
show of hands. Details of the poll procedures are included in all
notices/circulars to shareholders and will be explained during
the proceedings of meetings. Poll results will be posted on the
website of the Stock Exchange and the Company subsequent to
the close of the shareholders meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board.
The Chairman of the Board as well as the Chairmen of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee or, in their absence, other members of
the respective committees, are available to answer questions at
the shareholders’ meetings. Separate resolutions are proposed at
general meetings on each substantial issue, including the election
of individual directors.
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General Meeting (continued)

During the year, one general meeting was held on 28 May 2013,
which is the 2013 annual general meeting. The attendance record
of the Directors, on a named basis, is set out in the table on page
22 of this report.

Under the Code Provision A.6.7, INED and NED should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders. Mr. Feng Tao was unable to attend
the AGM of the Company held on 28 May 2013 due to other
important engagements. All other INED and NED had attended
the 2013 AGM to answer questions and collect views of
shareholders.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene Extraordinary
General Meeting

The following procedures for shareholders (the “Shareholders”,
each a “Shareholder”) of the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) of the Company are
prepared in accordance with Article 64 of the articles of
association of the Company:

(1) One or more Shareholders (the “Requisitionist(s)”) holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings shall have the right, by
written notice (the “Requisition”), to require an EGM to be
called by the Directors for the transaction of any business
specified therein;

2) Such Requisition shall be made in writing to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company
via email at the email address of the Company at
presidentoffice@ecogreen.com;

3) The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such Requisition; and

(4) If the Directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting
within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit of such
Requisition, the Requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Directors shall be reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by
the Company.
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Shareholders’ Communication

Corporation communications such as interim reports, annual
reports and circulars are sent to the shareholders in a timely
manner and are also available on the website of the Company.
The Company’s website provides the shareholders with the
corporate information, such as principal business activities and
latest development of the Group. Also, it provides information on
corporate governance and corporate social responsibilities of the
Group as well as the compositions and functions of the Board and
the committees.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company,
such as telephone hotline, fax number, email address and postal
address, in order to enable them to make any query that they
may have with respect to the Company. They can also send their
enquiries to the Board through these means.

Investor Relations

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.
Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and
timely manner. To promote effective communication, the
Company also maintains websites (www.ecogreen.com) where
extensive information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are posted.

By the Order of the Board
Yang Yirong
President

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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The directors (the “Directors”) of EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Group
Limited (the “Company”) are pleased to present their annual
report together with the audited financial statements of the
Company and of its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are the research and development,
production and sale of fine chemicals products from natural
resources for use in aroma chemicals and pharmaceutical
products, and the trading of fine chemicals products and natural
materials.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the financial
statements.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December
2013 are set out in Note 9 to the financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 48.

An interim dividend of HK1.49 cents per share, totalling
approximately RMB5,729,000 was declared and paid to
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) during the year
under review.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK7.1 cents per share to the Shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members on 12 June 2014. Together with the
interim dividend, this will bring the total dividend distribution for
the year to HK8.59 cents (2012: HK5.1 cents) per share, resulting
in an aggregate dividend of approximately RMB32,903,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2013.

Details of movements in reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 50. Details of movements in other reserves of the Group
and of the Company during the year are set out in Note 17 to the
financial statements.
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Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in Note 7 to the financial statements.

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves including retained earnings of the Company
at 31 December 2013 amounted to RMB321,537,000 (2012:
RMB315,785,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company had not
redeemed and neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

A summary of the results and of the financial positions of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 126.

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest and the
five largest customers were 14% and 33%, respectively. The
aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest and the
five largest suppliers were 10% and 35%, respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the
Company, which to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest
in the share capital of the Group’s five largest customers and five
largest suppliers noted above.
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The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Yirong (Chairman & President)
Mr. Gong Xionghui

Ms. Lu Jiahua

Mr. Han Huan Guang

Mr. Lin Zhigang

Non-executive Director (“NED(s)”)
Mr. Feng Tao

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)”)
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John

Mr. Lau Wang Yip, Derrick

In accordance with article 108(A) of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Gong Xionghui. Mr. Han Huan Guang and Mr.
Lin Zhigang, will retire from office by rotation and, being eligible,
offers themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

The NEDs and INEDs were appointed for an initial term of not
more than one year and will be renewable automatically for
successive term of one year until terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are
independent.

Details of the related party transactions are set out in Note 35 to
the financial statements.

Save for the above, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at year-
end or at any time during the year.
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Biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 15 to 18.

Details of Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section
161 of the Companies Ordinance and Appendix 16 of the Listing
Rules are set out in Note 25(b) to the financial statements.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
or chief executives of the Company or their spouses or children
under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate with the exception of the Company’s share
option scheme, details of which are set out in the following
section under the heading “Share options”.

At 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, chief executives and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), which were recorded
in the register maintained by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO; or which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules,
were as follows:
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Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and/or EEER{THAZAR®L - BEERHORE
short positions in shares, underlying shares and 4 2#HEE KB (E)
debentures (continued)

(a) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of  (a) RARABEBREEI0BTEER ZHFR
the Company

Number of shares held

IESTE
Interests in
underlying % of the
shares issued
comprised share capital
in the share of the
options Company
Personal Family Corporate B IR {EZA A 7]
Name of Director interests interests interests EF ziHHE 21T
EEMH BARER RIER NG5 IR R & i ENERd
Mr. Yang Yirong 400,000 - 198,294,158 - 198,694,158 41.11%
R EE (Note a)
(Ffzta)
Mr. Gong Xionghui - - 11,368,421 2,050,000 13,418,421 2.78%
BRIEBELE (Note b)
(PF5ED)
Ms. Lu Jiahua - - 8,526,316 1,650,000 10,076,316 2.08%
BRERZL (Note ¢)
(BifzEe)
Mr. Han Huan Guang 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 0.25%
BE R E
Mr. Lin Zhigang - - - 1,800,000 1,800,000 0.37%
MERILE
Mr. Feng Tao 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 0.25%
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen 100,000 - - 200,000 300,000 0.06%
ERE2EE
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John 100,000 - - 200,000 300,000 0.06%
ERBEE
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Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and/or
short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures (continued)

(a) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of
the Company (continued)

Notes:

(@) These shares were beneficially owned by Marietta Limited,
a private company beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Yang
Yirong.

(b) These shares were beneficially owned by Dragon Kingdom
Investment Limited, a private company beneficially wholly-
owned by Mr. Gong Xionghui.

(c) These shares were beneficially owned by Sunwill Investments
Limited, a private company beneficially wholly-owned by Ms.
Lu Jiahua.

(b) Interest in share options of the Company

Share options, being unlisted physically settled equity
derivatives, to subscribe for the ordinary shares of the
Company were granted to Directors, chief executives,
employees and certain participants pursuant to the
approved Company’s share option scheme. Information in
relation to these share options during the year ended 31
December 2013 are set out in the following section under
the heading “Share options”.

(c) Interest in registered share capital of a Company’s
subsidiary

Other than the interest disclosed above, a Director also
hold nominee shares in certain subsidiaries held in trust
for the Group solely for the purpose of ensuring that the
relevant subsidiary has more than one member.

Other than as disclosed above, neither the Directors nor
any chief executives, nor any of their associates, had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares, or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporation as at 31 December 2013.
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The following is a summary of the Company’s share option
scheme (the “Scheme”), which was approved and adopted
pursuant to a written resolution of the shareholders of the
Company passed on 16 February 2004, disclosed in accordance
with the Listing Rules:

1. Purpose of the Scheme

The Scheme is to enable the Group to grant options to
selected participants as incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group.

2. Participants of the Scheme

All Directors, employees, suppliers of goods or services,
customers, persons or entities that provide research,
development or other technological support to the Group,
shareholders and advisers or consultants of the Group are
eligible to participate in the Scheme.

3. Total number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme

The total number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on
21 July 2004, the date of approval of the refreshment
of the General Scheme Limit (as defined below) by the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

The Company may renew the 10% limit with Shareholders’
approval provided that each such renewal may not
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of the
Shareholder’s approval (the “General Scheme Limit”).

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from
time to time.

As at 23 April 2014, being the latest practicable date prior
to the issue of the annual report, options to subscribe for
a total of 28,030,000 Shares were still outstanding under
the Scheme which represents approximately 5.8% of the
Shares in issue.
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Share options (continued)

4,

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of the options granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) under
the Scheme or any other share option scheme adopted by
the Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1%
of the issued share capital.

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

An option must be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence from the date of the offer for
the grant of option is made, but shall end in any event not
later than 10 years from the date on which the offer for the
grant of the option is made, subject to the provisions for
early termination thereof.

The minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated
in the offer for the grant of options to a grantee, there is no
minimum period required under the Scheme for the holding
of an option before it can be exercised.

The period within which payments or calls must or
may be made or loans for such purposes must be
repaid and the amount payable on application or
acceptance of the option

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21 days
from the date of the offer for the grant of the option and the
amount payable on acceptance of the grant of an option is
HK$1.

The basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price is determined by the Directors and
being not less than the highest of:

a. the closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange for trade in one or more board lots of the
Company’s shares on the date of the offer for the
grant;
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Share options (continued) BE PR AE (42 )
8. The basis of determining the exercise price (continued) 8. BETHEEZEEE)
b. the average closing price of the Company’s shares b. RARIRMNRBEEREHBEREE
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock ARl AffE X B EBRMETARER
Exchange for the five business days immediately 5 EgemE : &
preceding the date of the offer for the grant; and
©. the nominal value of the Company’s shares. @ RABIRG 2 HE °
9. The remaining life of the Scheme 9. =T EIFERFHA
The Scheme will end on 15 February 2014, after which FEIRN =T —MFE_A+hABERM - k&
no option can be granted under the Scheme. However, TMERBFEIRK HEREE - A - KT —
options that remain outstanding as at 15 February 2014 WMEZRA+RABMARITEZERERT 17T
can be exercised until their respective expiry dates. £ - BEEEEBERBHAL -

The following table discloses details of share options outstanding ~ FTR&HMAR T —=F+=—F =+ — BIRET &%
as at 31 December 2013 under the Scheme and the movements  RIT{E Z BRI IE R ENFR 2 &E) -
during the year.

Balance Balance
asat asat
REE Lapsed 31 December
2013 Granted Exercised Cancelled 2013
Granted  Exercise Exercisable ~ RZE-=% during during during  RZZ-=
date price period -B-H the year the year the year
Type of Grantee ERAER ek k& 8 &5 EREi ERGE  FRAN/EH
HKS (000) (000) (000) ('000) ('000)
iy
Category 1 - Directors ~~ $EFl1-£2
Mr. Gong Xionghui Rt 8.6.2004 137 8.6.2004-7.6.2014 2,050 - - - 2,050
Ms. Lu Jiahua EXELt 8.6.2004 137 8.6.2004-7.6.2014 1950 - - - 1,550
Mr. Lin Zhigang MaEH 8.6.2004 137 8.6.2004-7.6.2014 1800 - - - 1,800
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen ERERE 8.6.2004 137 8,6.2004-7.6.2014 200 - - - 200
Mr. Wong Yk Chung, John ~ EER %% 8.6.2004 137 8,6.2004-7.6.2014 200 - - - 200
Sub-total N5t 5,800 - - - 5,800
Category 2- £hl2- 8.6.2004 137 8.6.2004-7.6.2014 2,230 - - - 2,230
Employees under ERRE
continuous =hEE
employment contract
Sub-total It 2,230 - - - 2,230
Total 3t 8,030 - - - 8,030
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Interest and/or short positions of shareholders
discloseable under SFO

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of
the persons, other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company,
which were notified to the Company pursuant to Division 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO; or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the
Company

\ Directors’ Report e EE&#H&E

RERSRPERMIETHRE 2 RRE
o) =09}

RIE—=F+"A=+—B BREFREQFT
BAREIAINZ AER AR BB A RABBER D+ -
BIRBEES KA RMEXVEE2R37FE ME AR
NA]  AARBREE S K R FEIB6HREF
Bz BRMARE SRR MT

RAAREREEIGELEBR ZHFA

Number of shares held

FR#FRR &
Interest of
corporation

controlled % of the

by the issued share

substantial capital of the

shareholder Company

Beneficial Investment e Other {52~ a]

manager FREEHIRY interests B B4T

RERE EENER Hith#E z5 RAE DL

Marietta Limited 198,184,158 - - - 198,184,158 41.00%

(Note a)
(MtzFa)
FMR LLC — 48,448,000 - — 48,448,000 10.02%
Platinum Investment - 34,130,000 = - 34,130,000 7.06%
Management Limited
Notes: BT
(a) These shares were registered in the name of and beneficially owned by (@) ZF R 15 LAMarietta Limited 2 B & & 50 * WHZ A A
Marietta Limited, the entire issued share capital of which was directly B HEA - MMarietta Limited 2 22 31 TAR AN A LATS
and beneficially owned by Mr. Yang Yirong. BREEERESHESR ©

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been B EXEEEIN  RARTEENE R _T—=

notified by any persons, other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company, who had interest or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as at 31
December 2013.
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A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2013 is disclosed in
Note 35 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above:

(i) no contracts of significance subsisted to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly at the end of the years ended
31 December 2013 or at any time during the years; and

(if) there were no transactions which need to be disclosed
as connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with
most of the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2013, save for the deviations from Code Provision A.2.1 and
A.6.7 of the CG Code. Information on the deviations and further
information on the Company’s corporate governance Code is set
out in the “Corporate Governance Report” as set out on pages 19
to 30.

Based on the information that is publicly available to and within
the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is
sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares at the date of the annual report.

The accompanying financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Directors
Yang Yirong
Chairman & President

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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BE-T-=F+-A=1—ALEE  AKET
S0 R 5 52 5 18 B RUR & GHRI T R B 35

B EXATREEE SN

(i) REE - T — = FE 4R St B (B
A - AR R REAE M E AR ET LA
RAEEHBEAER (TwERNKEE) B
DABRNEREL + &

(ii) BER S ARE TR AR EREREE

T

EERA BKETRMECEERSMR T AEXSE
A2 ERAB.TIRSN - RRRRHBE_FT—=F1+_
A=+—HLEFE—EETEWRME14PTEA
MoK EEERTAD) - BRAZFREERA QA DE
ERTRIZE-—TEMBENEI9EI0E [REER
wE] o

BEEEUAAARNEREZERRFESARAM
AARER  RERABARRBEHTRNDES
25%A EZ TR ABIFRE o

AU BHRREMBIBICEG AN BB AER © &
REEERSR  BRTREBEBEE -

KEE=S

FERABE

E

B —E-HNF=A=-+HhHA

s “E—=HFR



38 3 B BT R

_
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ECOGREEN FINE CHEMICALS GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 44 to 125,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as
at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any person for
the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

R R RE
HPEBHCTIEEERAARR
(RAEASHEEMALZFRAE])

AAZEED (UL TATE [ R BB FIRN Fa4Z
125 AR AL T EBAR AR (A TR [EA
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MAHNARAEREREBRSRE L FENALH
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BemER  UREBEHBENS R MBI TR
AR -
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M REEN RBBCRBED) HIRERERES
HEBHRE - USAHPBRRIEHEEMAFH
R REBEERSREAHYBREALENA
HRIEH] - AE S H M B HER N7 & BN EKGF R
B EAFERERAL

BAMEERRERANEAEZZEHPBEERER
EHER  WEABRBRRRS @ RIEZIERES
AIEEMB A - HRATERABENARATAE
i AL 8 FSAEEMEE -

HMERBEB SRS RMANEERTLEDE
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ERIEAHERBRA

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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T - +852 2289 8888, (EE : +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com



Independent Auditor’s Report ¢ B #% Sk

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
EHEEEER

As at 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+_-A=+—H

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ihg=2 AR®T T AR®ET T
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FREEE
Land use rights i fF AR 6 8,848 9,079
Deposits for the acquisition of EETMERAELATR 33
land use rights 30,037 -
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 7 354,841 384,008
Intangible assets mEE 8 48,216 50,081
Investments in associates BB IR & 10 7,112 8,924
Deferred income tax assets EEFSHERE 22 2,408 2,623
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ At HES RS E 11 200 200
Prepayments B 14 12,000 -
Other asset HtmEE 14 2,400 -
466,062 454,915
Current assets mEEE
Inventories FE 12 149,093 114,683
Trade receivables and bills e BR 20 & e N Z= i 13 525,190 377,348
receivable
Prepayments and other receivables a1 3% % o fth & Y 2k 14 151,486 131,743
Amounts due from related JE U BE s 5 OB
companies 35 2,439 -
Derivative financial instruments mESmI A 21 - 151
Pledged bank deposits B 2 SRITIF 15 32,092 98,271
Cash and cash equivalents L RIRESEEY 15 901,307 833,919
1,761,607 1,556,115
Total assets HEE 2,227,669 2,011,030
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Eak&aE
Equity attributable to owners EEREBRAQAREESE
of the Company
Share capital RE AR 16 50,781 50,781
Share premium R AR B 16 199,470 199,470
Other reserves Hib 17 104,884 79,141
Retained earnings IREE B
- Proposed final dividend — BURARARAR B 31 27,174 16,013
— Others —H A 931,458 840,737
1,313,767 1,186,142
Non-controlling interests FEIEFI MR S 3,048 3,025
Total equity R 1,316,815 1,189,167
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\ Consolidated Balance Sheet e 4t &EE&EX

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M ARET T AREFT
LIABILITIES =K
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Borrowings == 18 300,744 2,300
Derivative financial instruments TESmIT A 21 1,840 -
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFEHAE 22 23,200 18,200
325,784 20,500
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade payables and bills payable ENRRR N ENZEE 19 104,999 267,408
Current income tax liabilities VARSI & & 14,653 7,976
Borrowings == 18 435,502 494,308
Derivative financial instruments eI A 21 - 564
Accruals and other payables et E R R EMERNR 20 29,125 30,337
Amount due to a director FEf—EE=38 35 791 770
585,070 801,363
Total liabilities FOR =R 910,854 821,863
Total equity and liabilities HERREE 2,227,669 2,011,080
Net current assets nEBEEFE 1,176,537 754,752
Total assets less current liabilities & ERTEBEE 1,642,599 1,209,667
YANG YIRONG LU JIAHUA
R E EXRE
Chairman Executive director
£ HITEE

The notes on pages 52 to 125 are an integral part of these  E52F 1258 /i AZEAHMEREREPHD -
consolidated financial statements.
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Balance Sheet
BEESER

As at 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+_-A=+—H

31 December

31 December

\ 46 \ ECOGREEN FINE CHEMICALS GROUP LIMITED * #1484 TEEAR AR

2013
—E—=
+=—HB=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M ARET T AREFT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investments in and amounts due  RBAE 2 E RENK
from subsidiaries =N FeEE] 9 391,488 350,694
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUBT B A TR IE 9 400,286 114,985
Prepayments SEENEEN 14 39 79
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBeEEY 15 7,169 634
407,494 115,698
Total assets BEE 798,982 466,392
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners EREERN
of the Company RAREEE
Share capital RE AR 16 50,781 50,781
Share premium A& AR B 16 199,470 199,470
Other reserves H b 17 94,229 94,229
Retained earnings IREB & F
- Proposed final dividend — Bk R EIRE B 31 27,174 16,013
— Others —H 664 6,073
Total equity R 372,318 366,566
LIABILITIES ai
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Borrowings EE 18 298,894 -
Derivative financial instruments TESmIEA 21 1,840 -
300,734 -




31 December

\ Balance Sheet « EE&&%

31 December

2013
—E—=
+=B=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M ARET T AREFT
Current liabilities pEII=NE
Borrowings ==y 18 124,288 97,121
Derivative financial instruments TELRTA 21 - 564
Accruals and other payables FERTE A R H AL BN 20 1,642 2,141
125,930 99,826
Total liabilities BeF 426,664 99,826
Total equity and liabilities wESZNEE 798,982 466,392
Net current assets mENEEFE 281,564 15,872
Total assets less current liabilities 2&EER GBS RE 673,052 366,566
YANG YIRONG LU JIAHUA
Pl EXRE
Chairman Executive director
*E HITEFE

The notes on pages 52 to 125 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Income Statement
SR FER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z—_F—=F+_A=+—HLFE

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR®ET T ARKETTT
Revenue WA 5 1,227,295 1,057,371
Cost of goods sold EEERRA 24 (923,636) (798,290)
Gross profit ESA| 303,659 259,081
Other (losses)/gains — net Hin(38K) s —F5E 23 (5,754) 4,222
Selling and marketing costs SHE N TSR A 24 (27,352) (27,455)
Administrative expenses THREA 24 (51,367) (48,352)
Operating profit H e | 219,186 187,496
Finance income s Es 26 6,947 6,761
Finance costs BARE B N 26 (27,495) (30,254)
Finance costs — net BTSN — F 58 26 (20,548) (23,493)
Share of losses of associates FERE LB 10 (474) (267)
Profit before taxation R BRI A 198,164 163,736
Taxation BiE 27 (48,716) (35,914)
Profit for the year FERF 149,448 127,822
Profit attributable to: AR ER
Owners of the Company KARERE 149,425 127,942
Non-controlling interests FEFR M AE RS 23 (120)
149,448 127,822
Earnings per share attributable FEGRENS
to owners of the Company RARRHEE
during the year (BBRAAREIR)
(expressed in RMB per share)
- Basic — K 30 30.9 Centsfll | 26.5 Centsfl
- Diluted — e 30 30.8 Centsflll | 26.4 Centsfll

The notes on pages 52 to 125 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
et mlaEk

For the year ended 31 December 20183 =2 —Z—=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E ARET T ARBFT
Profit for the year FERA 149,448 127,822
Other comprehensive Hih2m(EL) Wik -
(loss)/income:
ltems that may be reclassified AW EN D EAER
to profit or loss HH
Currency translation differences  SMNEHTE 2= %8 (58) 9
Other comprehensive FEHMEmEX),
(loss)/income for the year e zssaza (58) 9
Total comprehensive income FEXEBRERE
for the year 149,390 127,831
Attributable to: BN
Owners of the Company PN/ B S 149,367 127,951
Non-controlling interests FEPEHIM R 23 (120)
Total comprehensive income FEXHWEEEE
for the year 149,390 127,831

The notes on pages 52 to 125 are an integral part of these  E52F 1258 iiH AZEAHMEHREREPHD -
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EOtEREEX

For the year ended 31 December 20183 =2 —Z—=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

consolidated financial statements.
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BERAARHEE
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling
capital premium reserves earnings interests
kx  BREE  HbRE  RERA FEGIMEER
RMB’'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETR ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARETT AR%TR
Balance at 1 January 2013 R-B-=£
-B-He&# 50,781 199,470 79,141 856,750 1,186,142 3,025 1,189,167
Total comprehensive —E--FrENEEE
income for 2013 - - (58) 149,425 149,367 23 149,390
Dividend relating to 2012 BA-ZT-—57k3 - - - (16,013) (16,013) - (16,013)
Dividend relating to 2013 BE-T-=F7kRE - - - (5,729) (5,729) - (5,729)
Transfer from retained RBBFIER (H3E17)
earnings (Note 17) - - 25,801 (25,801) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2013 WZZE-=F+Zf
St-HeER 50,781 199,470 104,884 958,632 1,313,767 3,048 1,316,815
Balance at 1 January 2012 R-E--F
-A-B2&e 50,872 200,383 64,703 760,732 1,076,690 3,145 1,079,835
Total comprehensive “E-CErENGAS
income for 2012 - - 9 127,942 127,951 (120) 127,831
Repurchase of shares EER R 1) (913) 91 - (913) - (913)
Dividend relating to 2011 BA-Z——F7RS - - - (13,635) (13,635) - (13,635)
Dividend relating to 2012 BA-Z-——57kRS - - - (3,951) (3,951) - (3,951)
Transfer from retained RERFIEE (H317)
earnings (Note 17) - - 14,338 (14,338) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2012 R=E-—&+-f
St-Ae&ER 50,781 199,470 79,141 856,750 1,186,142 3,025 1,189,167
The notes on pages 52 to 125 are an integral part of these  E52F 1258 MiiH AZEAHMEREREPHD -




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 20183 =2 —Z—=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
b ARET T ARBFT

Cash flows from operating activities K& EENIESRE
Cash (used in)/generated from IR () Fr5HIRE

operations 32 (26,451) 288,549
Interest paid 28 (37,161) (30,373)
Income tax paid EFTSE (36,824) (26,427)
Net cash (used in)/generated from  && 258 (FrA),Fr8

operating activities REFH (100,436) 231,749
Cash flows from investing activities IRE&EZHWRETE
Payments of deposits for the SNEBELERECF

acquisition of land use rights 33 (30,037) -
Additions to property, plant and WHEYIZE - BE &R

equipment 7 (10,872) (30,954)
Additions to intangible assets HE & EE N 8 (6,040) (16,959)
Additions to prepayments for EE n P B A AN TR - B o0

product development projects 14 (12,000) -
Addition to investment in an Bt A 12

associate 10 - (2,500)
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE  BEKE

property, plant and equipment Z W 32 7 117
Proceeds from disposal of HEBMEIRE 2 ks

investment in an associate 10 1,960 -
Net cash used in investing activities && EENFTAIR G F5E (56,982) (50,296)
Cash flows from financing activities FI&EEBHNRESTRE
Interest received B U F B 6,947 6,761
Repurchase of shares ElE ) = (913)
Proceeds from borrowings BEEE® 723,463 468,608
Repayments of borrowings EEEE (483,825) (385,993)
Increase/(decrease) in amount due BN —Z S EFH

to a director 21 (144)
Dividends paid 1% 837 1+ (21,742) (17,586)
Net cash generated from A EE TSI S R

financing activities 224,864 70,733
Net increase in cash BeRRESEEYILINTE

and cash equivalents 67,446 252,186
Cash and cash equivalents FUzRERBLEEY

at beginning of the year 833,919 581,724
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash e RBESEEBWMIEL

and cash equivalents (1BR) Mz (58) 9
Cash and cash equivalents FRZESRBSEEY

at end of the year 15 901,307 833,919

The notes on pages 52 to 125 are an integral part of these  E52F 1258 iiH AZEAHMEHREREPHD -
consolidated financial statements.
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B O R R R M

EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Group Limited (“EcoGreen” or
“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”)
are principally engaged in the production and trading of fine
chemicals from natural resources for use in aroma chemicals and
pharmaceutical products.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 3
March 2003 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is Century Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681 GT, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman
Islands, British West Indies.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Chinese
Renminbi (RMB), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated
financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on 25 March 2014.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which include all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial
assets, financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried
at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & {5 RM

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in Note 4.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(@) The following new standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations are mandatory for the Group’s financial
year beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and have been
adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Government Loans

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Disclosures — Offsetting Financial

Assets and Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other
Entities

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine

HK (IFRIC) - Int 20

The adoption of the above new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretation has had no material effect on the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements, except for
certain disclosures in respect of HKAS 1 (Amendment), HKFRS 7
(Amendment) and HKFRS 13.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & {5 RM

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1

(b) The following new standards, amendments to standards
and interpretation have been issued but are not effective
for the financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2013
and have not been early adopted by the Group:

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

Effective for
the accounting
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2.1.1 B HENEENZE(E)
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period beginning
on or after
HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and 1 January 2014
(Amendment) Financial Liabilities
HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for 1 January 2014
(Amendment) Non-Financial Assets
HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and 1 January 2014
(Amendment) Continuation of Hedge Accounting
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments Effective date

Amendments to
HKFRS 7 and
HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)

HK (IFRIC) - Int 21

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosures

Investment Entities

Levies

to be determined
Effective date
to be determined

1 January 2014

1 January 2014

Management is in the process of making an assessment of the
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likely impact of these changes but is not yet in a position to
state whether any substantial changes to the Group’s significant
accounting policies and/or the presentation of its financial
statements will result.

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & {5 RM

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the
Group’s accounting policies.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition
date; any gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & {5 RM

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Consolidation (continued)

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity
as owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised
in the consolidated income statement. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to the consolidated
income statement.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss of
the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s investment
in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & {5 RM

2.3 Associates (continued)

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to ‘share of losses of associates’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gains and losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Executive Directors.

2.5 Foreign currency translation
(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & {5 RM

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges
and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘finance income or cost’. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘other (losses)/gains — net’.

Changes in the fair value of debt securities denominated in a
foreign currency classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in
the amortised cost of the security, and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation differences related
to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss,
and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
such as equities classified as available-for-sale are included in
other comprehensive income.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(if) income and expenses for each income statement are

translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

(iif) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & {5 RM

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c) Group companies (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment
2.6.1 Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress, representing buildings on which
construction work has not been completed and machinery
pending installation, is stated at historical cost, which includes
construction expenditures incurred, cost of machinery, and
other direct costs capitalised during the construction and
installation period, less accumulated impairment losses, if
any. No depreciation is provided in respect of construction-in-
progress until the construction and installation work is completed.
On completion, the construction-in-progress is transferred to
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment.

2.6.2 Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers from
equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of
foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in
the consolidated income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost less their residual values, where appropriate over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings

Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvements
Office furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles

30 to 40 years
5 to 15 years
5to 10 years
51to 10 years
5to 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

25 IMNEBRE(E)

(c) EE T ()
WEESINEEBRNELECHERAABERAEIRE
ZENERCEERBERIE  WKRHRERK
HoEEMERZREEEP AR - INEIRE =5
EHMEEmKESPER -

26 ME BERRERE

2.6.1 HZEIF
EREIREATHKEREIRZEFRATE 2 #
B EKNAAR BEMEEZEERT - #ESK
AREERZEPRAEMBTERN 2 EEKAN B
FRZFRESE(INE) - BERLETHE - T
SREETIRELINE - RERE - EEIRESR
ZRBME - BEMEEER -

262 EHmyE - BERLE

Hi¥E - BB REEIIZE LK ARITE KR E
BB - FEE N ABEWBEEEEREELEZH
T oo NATA BIREEEER CEHEYE  BEK
%&ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁ ZEBRBEESREMEL ZEM
ek, fE5iE o

B/ EIR B ARR < A RIEE N A A BER N AR A
R M HEHERBERAZIBRT - BIEKAT
EHABERAEARRRBLEE(KER) - E
SHREHNRAESHRLTRER - MEEMAEER
RENEEEVMBARES HHRERIIHE °

Hp¥% - BE RREABGETEIE - Wi,
FAAERFMORKAEREMSER) - MEHAE
PSRN

BF 30E 404
[R5 N 23 5E 154
HEMHEEE 5104
PR EIRM 5Z 104
R MR 5104

REEE B RS MR (WER)EE 2 #HE R £
F4H -

WEEZ REEBEEATAIREEE  MEEZ
AREER N R EE A W £ 58 (i RE2.8) -

* TE—=FFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & {5 RM

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
2.6.2 Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised within ‘other
(losses)/gains — net’ in the consolidated income statement.

2.7 Intangible assets
2.7.1 Research and development

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred.
Costs incurred on development projects (relating to the design
and testing of new or improved products) are recognised as
intangible assets when the following criteria are fulfilled:

(@) it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

(b) management intends to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

(c) there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

(d) it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits;

(e) adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the intangible
asset are available; and

() the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during
its development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria
are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an
asset in a subsequent period.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets

and amortised from the point at which the asset is ready for use
on a straight-line basis over a period of five years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & {5 RM

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

2.9 Financial assets
2.9.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivable and available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determine the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(@) Financial assets at fair value though profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets if expected to be settled within 12
months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans and
receivables comprise ‘trade and other receivables’, ‘pledged
bank deposits’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the balance
sheet (Note 2.12 and Note 2.13).

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
the investment mature or management intends to dispose of the
investment within 12 months of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & {5 RM

2.9 Financial assets (continued)
2.9.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed
in the consolidated income statement. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category are
presented in the consolidated income statement within ‘other
losses/(gains) — net’, in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement as part of
other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the consolidated income statement
as ‘gains and losses from investment securities’. Interest on
available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the consolidated income statement.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in the consolidated income statement when the Group’s right to
receive payment is established.

2.9.3 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & {5 RM

2.9 Financial assets (continued)
2.9.4 Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement. If a loan or
held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & {5 RM

2.9 Financial assets (continued)
2.9.5 Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. For debt securities, the Group
uses the criteria referred to in (a) above. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity
and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised
in the consolidated income statement on equity instruments
are not reversed through the consolidated income statement.
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed
through the consolidated income statement.

2.10

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Inventories

2.11

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & {5 RM

2.13 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or share options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
share capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes)
is deducted from equity attributable to owners of the Company
until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary
shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received,
net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and
the related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to
the Company’s owners.

2.14 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.15 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & {5 RM

2.16 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that

it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & {5 RM

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
(b) Deferred income tax (continued)
Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint arrangements, except for deferred income tax liability
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the
Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary difference
for associates. Only where there is an agreement in place that
gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of the temporary
difference not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements only to the extent that it
is probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.18 Employee benefits
2.18.1 Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date. Employee entitlements
to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of the leave.

2.18.2 Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated
by the Group before the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises
costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS 37 and
involves the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the number of employees
expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to
their present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & {5 RM

2.18 Employee benefits (continued)
2.18.3 Share-based compensation
(a) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan, under which the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (share options) of the Group.
The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the share options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the share options granted:

° including any market performance conditions (for example,
an entity’s share price);

° excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to
vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. In addition, in some circumstances
employees may provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for the purposes
of recognising the expense during the period between service
commencement period and grant date. At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
income statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares.
The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium.

(b) Share-based payment transactions among group entities

The grant by the Company of share options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in
the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value
of employee services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a
corresponding credit to equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & {5 RM

2.18 Employee benefits (continued)
2.18.4 Pension obligations

Group companies operate various defined contribution plans.
The plans are generally funded through payments to trustee-
administered funds.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods. The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments
is available.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination penalties and
employee termination payments. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

2.18 EERA(E)
2.18.4 Rk E (T

SERBREZEERERETE
BAXFAERESNRMES -

o It FEEHE —ARIE

ERERFE R —BAREE R —EF )3 8 It
ME’JLW#%IJ FRESYEKBERNEERMA

BT EAESHRATEBHRSRE AR - K&
MR E S TE B AN E— PR - AR ER
HREHE  AEE G - aRMERERES X
A 2 B 3R A B R AR KR B ST B R - REEIE
ﬁf RIE - BB — B RERS o MR R R
RAEEBRHNER - BTHFKIZRIA SRR
/*PKH/TMT‘EEEWPJQEZ

2.19 s
EASEREREEENEFMEEAR BN EEZXETE
B RAREEFEROALUNGESS ke
RAE 19 Al S AT B R 38845 -

ERERBEREER LTS
BRI E B IR

RN TEF R - B

WEZERUEY  EF2EAETEERAHD

AIBENE - RIRTRIREB AR EEZE - AMEER
—EBERME O EA—ERB HENERRH
KR BEIEARIE - (DB RERIEA

%éﬁ?%ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁlﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ%% I EBBEBHX L
REFE ZMNERRERTSESERMENE
Eﬁ%?}‘klﬁﬂ E’Jpﬂé ﬁL%Hﬁ? 8 25 T I AN A
BRER AT EE

* TE—=FFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & {5 RM

2.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for
goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value
added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities. Revenue
is recognised as follows:

(a) Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity has delivered
products to the customer, the customer has accepted the
products and collectibility of the related receivables is reasonably
assured.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
When a loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognised
using the original effective interest rate.

(c) Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

2.21

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

Operating leases

2.22 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by
the Company’s shareholders or directors, as appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & {5 RM

2.23 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Such financial guarantees are given to banks to support banking
facilities granted to subsidiaries.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company’s liabilities under
such guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial amount,
less amortisation of fees recognised in accordance with HKAS
18, and the best estimate of the amount required to settle the
guarantee. These estimates are determined based on experience
of similar transactions and history of past losses, supplemented
by the judgement of management. The fee income earned, if
any, is recognised on a straight-line basis over the life of the
guarantee. Any increase in the liability relating to guarantees
is reported in the consolidated income statement within other
operating expenses.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of
subsidiaries are provided for no compensation, the fair values are
accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost
of the investment in the financial statements of the Company.

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables and derivative financial instruments.
The Group’s financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and
other payables and derivative financial instruments.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair value interest
rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. These risks are limited by the Group’s financial
management policies and practices described below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & {5 RM

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Credit risk

The Group has policies in place to ensure that liquid funds are
placed with financial institutions registered with sound credit
standing in Mainland China and Hong Kong. Sales of products
are made to customers with appropriate credit history. The Group
performs credit evaluations on its customers.

Trade receivables are due within two to three months from the
date of billing. As at 31 December 2013, 73% of the total trade
receivables were due within three months (2012: 79%).

As at 31 December 2013, the five largest customers accounted
for approximately 30% of the trade receivable carrying amount
(2012: 36%).

The Group considers the largest customers are financially healthy
with no significant credit risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk represents the carrying
amounts of trade receivables in the balance sheet.

Quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are set out in Note 13.

(b) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables detail the remaining contractual maturities
at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group and the
Company can be required to pay.

Where the loan agreement contains a repayable on demand
clause which gives the lender the unconditional right to call
the loan at any time, the amounts repayable are classified in
the earliest time bracket in which the lender could demand
repayment.
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\ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & 3tBt i HmzRM =

3. Financial risk management (continued) 3. BXREBREREEZ)
3.1  Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HEEBRREZEE
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) b)  RBELEEE)

Total
contractual Morethan ~ More than
undiscourted Tyearbut  2yearshut
cash flow lessthan2  lessthan 5

Camying ~ BiAM  Repayabe  Within 3tof 609 Witint years years  More than
amount ~ AEEN  ondemand  Smonhs  months  months yar  -Ef ZEE Syeas
The Group BEE ReNELE REBNR  ZEAm ZEAEAM AEAERR -Eh BTERE BFREE IEK

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
BT ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETn ARETR
At 31 December 2013 RZE-ZETZf=1-§
Borrowings EF 136,246 776,233 60,933 0372 117,687 450 262,032 206990 103,769 -
Derivative financial instruments fE4BIE 1,840 1,840 - - - - - - 1840 -
Trade payables and bils payables ERETREREE 104,999 104,099 3,198 53,751 47,450 - - - - -
Aecruals and other payables EABRRAMEN 15576 15576 - 15576 - - - - - -
At 31 December 2012 RoE-—E+-f=1-R
Borrowings g 496608 516308 121534 2439 90,779 40 298,107 913 1573 513
Derivative financialinstruments fTE2BIE 564 564 - - - - 564 - - -
Trade payables and bills payables ENGIRETZE 267408 267408 338 140650 121410 - - - - -
Aecruals and other payables EABRRAMEN LEAR IR YA -1 - - - - - -

Total
contractual Morethan ~ More than
undiscounted Tyearbut ~ 2yearsbut
cash flow lessthan2  lessthan 5

Camying ~ BiAM  Repayabe  Within 3tof 609 Witint years years  More than
amount ~ AEEN  ondemand  Smonhs  months  months o  -Ef ZEE Syeas
The Company BEE ReMENE REBAR  ZEAM =EAEAM AEAEAR  -ER ETERE BFRRE  BEK

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEETn ARMTn ARETT ARMTn ARETn ARMTn ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETR
At 31 December 2013 RIE-ZE+Zf=1-§
Borrowings gg 423,182 448,625 - - - - 130915 206,864 101,846 -
Derivative fnancia instruments f1EEHIE 180 1840 - - - - - - 180 -
Trade payables and bils payables EABRREMEN 1,642 1,642 - 1,642 - - - - - -
Accruals and other payables HEERTHEDNT 164342 168791 69519 305 9,141 = = 7 = =
At 31 December 2012 RoE-—E+f=1-A
Borrovings e 97121 99532 - - - - 0953 - - -
Derivative financial instruments fESHIE 564 564 - - - - 564 - - -
Trade payables and bills payables EABRRAMENS 2141 2141 - 214 - - - - - -
Accruals and other payables HEERTHEAT W 5165 15EEE6 97T 85508 - - 404 - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & {5 RM

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates as the Group
has no significant interest-bearing assets. The Group’s exposure
to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable to its bank
borrowings. Bank borrowings at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. Bank borrowings at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest-rate risk. Details
of the Group’s bank borrowings are disclosed in Note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Group analyses its interest
rate exposure on a dynamic basis and to hedge its variable rate
by fixed rate instruments, when necessary. Various scenarios
are simulated taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of
existing positions, alternative financing and hedging. Based on
the various scenarios, the Group manages its cash flow interest
rate risk by using floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps. Such
interest rate swaps have the economic effect of converting
borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates. Generally, the Group
raises long-term borrowings at floating rates and swaps them
into fixed rates. Under the interest rate swaps, the Group agrees
with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals (primarily
semi-annually), the difference between fixed contract rates and
floating-rate interest amounts calculated by reference to the
agreed notional amounts.

During 2013 and 2012, the Group’s borrowings at variable rates
were denominated in United States dollars (“USD”), RMB and
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”).

It is estimated that an increase/decrease of 50 basis points as
at 31 December 2013 in bank borrowing interest rates for bank
loans with all other variables held constant would decrease/
increase the profit after taxation by approximately RMB3,666,000
(2012: 50 basis points; RMB2,466,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet
date and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
non derivative financial instruments in existence at that date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & {5 RM

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(d) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Mainland China with most of the
transactions settled in RMB. Foreign exchange rate risk arises
when future commercial transactions or recognised assets and
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency.

The Group’s assets and liabilities, and transactions arising
from its operations primarily do not expose to material foreign
exchange risk. Other than certain trade receivables, cash and
cash equivalents, borrowings and derivative financial instruments
denominated in USD and HKD, details of which have been
disclosed in Note 13, Note 15, Note 18 and Note 21, respectively.
The Group’s assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in
RMB. Other than approximately 18% (2012: 23%) of the sales
are denominated in USD and certain expenses in HKD, the
Group mainly generates RMB from sales in Mainland China to
meet its liabilities denominated in RMB. During the year ended
31 December 2013, the Group entered into foreign exchange
contracts to manage its foreign currency risk.

The RMB has experienced certain appreciation in recent years
which is the major reason for the exchange losses arising from
operating activities and exchange gain arising from financing
activities recognised by the Group for the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012. Further depreciation or appreciation
of the USD and the HKD against the RMB will affect the Group’s
financial position and results of operations.

A 1% strengthening/weakening of the RMB against USD and
HKD as at the respective balance sheet dates would increase/
decrease profit after taxation by approximately RMB3,919,000
(2012: RMB1,143,000) and by approximately RMB94,000
(2012: RMB288,000), respectively, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gain/loss on translation of USD and HKD denominated
bank borrowings.

(e) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because
certain investments held by the Group are classified as available-
for-sale financial assets. As the amount of such financial assets is
not material to the Group, the exposure to price risk is considered
to be insignificant.
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(e) Price risk (continued)

The Group purchases turpentine as one of its major raw materials
for its manufacturing process, and is exposed to fluctuation in its
market price. The Group does not use any derivative instruments
to reduce its economic exposure to the change in price of raw
materials.

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital
on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net
debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings (including current and non-current borrowings as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “equity”, as shown in
the consolidated balance sheet, plus net debt.

During 2013, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2012, was to maintain the debt equity ratio to be in a net cash
position. The net cash amounts at 31 December 2013 and 2012
were as follows:

3. HBRREER(E)

3.1 UHEREREGE)

e  EmEEE)
AEBERBLEAMEAELEERENTZRMH -
YEHTIHERKDY - AEELEERERTET
BLURERMEHBRRE) < L HRER o

3.2 E(sERERE

AEEHNESETERER  —RREASEHEEES
B AAREIRERRMN AR MERTE ARET
= FARERRENEAEBIUREE KA -
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RMB’000 RMB’000

AREET T ARBEFT

Total borrowings (Note 18) BEE(ME18) (736,246) (496,608)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReMEeEEY

(Note 15) (PffF5E15) 901,307 833,919

Net cash HIH S 165,061 337,311

The decrease in the net cash position during 2013 resulted
primarily from the decrease in net cash generated from operating
activities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & {5 RM

3.3 Fair value estimation

HKFRS 7 requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level
of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

° Level 1 — Quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities. The Group does not have this
type of financial instruments.

o Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices). As at 31 December 2013, the
Group had no outstanding foreign currency forward
contract with fair value recognised as assets (2012:
RMB151,000) and interest rate swap contracts with fair
values of RMB1,840,000 recognised as liabilities (2012:
RMB564,000).

o Level 3 — Inputs for asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs). As
at 31 December 2013, the Group had available-for-sale
financial assets of RMB200,000 (2012: RMB200,000) that
are within this category.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market
data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. If
one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments
include:

° The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the
present value of the estimated future cash flows based on
observable yield curves.

o Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis,
are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.
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S Financial risk management (continued)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The following financial assets and liabilities are subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar
agreements.

3. HBRREE(E

34 HHTHEEMERE

THeREERAEIEE  ATHT
AR ZEARR ©

BE R

Related amounts
not set off in the balance sheet

TEEESBERPEENEEEE

Gross
amounts of  Net amounts
Gross recognised of financial
amounts financial liabilities
of recognised assets set off  presented in Cash and cash
As at financial in the balance the balance Pledged equivalents -
31 December 2013 liabilities sheet sheet deposits  cash at bank
HEERBR REEAEBR RER
R  HENERI ) BiEfz BReZEY-
tREELEE IREELE SRAREE BITEN BT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR ARBT T AR®TR AR®T T ARBTT
Bank borrowings (Note 18)  #R7T{5E (Fi3E18) 733,276 - 733,276 - (46,658) 686,618
Bills payable (Note 19) FER R (H5E19) 81,941 - 81,941 (22,658) (36) 59,247
Total 85 815,217 - 815,217 (22,658) (46,694) 745,865

Gross
amounts of
recognised

financial
assets set off
in the balance

Gross
amounts of
recognised

financial
liabilities

As at
31 December 2012

7
e :
RMB’000

Related amounts
not set off in the balance sheet

TEEEARRTEHENEREE

Net amounts
of financial
liabilities
presented in
the balance
sheet

EEERER
28,

Cash and cash
equivalents -
cash at bank

Aek
\ﬂ"{ﬁf% -
AT

Pledged
deposits

B2
RITEHR

Net amount

R

RMB’000

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT
Bank borrowings (Note 18) BT E (KizE18) 493,188 - 493,188 (268) (20,958) 471,962
Bills payable (Note 19) FER R (MEE19) 237,584 - 237,584 (80,932) (9,381) 147,271
Total @st 730,772 - 730,772 (81,200) (30,339) 619,233

For the financial assets and liabilities subject to enforceable
master netting arrangements or similar arrangements above, each
agreement between the Group and the counterparty allows for
net settlement of the relevant financial assets and liabilities when
both elect to settle on a net basis. In the absence of such an
election, financial assets and liabilities will be settled on a gross
basis, however, each party to the master netting agreement or
similar agreement will have the option to settle all such amounts
on a net basis in the event of default of the other party. Per the
terms of each agreement, an event of default includes failure by
a party to make payment when due; failure by a party to perform
any obligation required by the agreement (other than payment); or
bankruptcy.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & {5 RM

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations and competitor actions in response to
market conditions. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives or it will write off or write down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

(b) Estimated impairment of intangible assets and trade
receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of intangible
assets and trade receivables based on an assessment of
the recoverability of intangible assets and trade receivables.
Provisions are applied to intangible assets and trade receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be recoverable. The identification of impairment
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of intangible assets and trade
receivables and provision for impairment in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & {5 RM

(c) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based
on current market conditions and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste and
competitor actions in response to changes in market conditions.
Management reassesses these estimates at each balance sheet
date. During the year ended 31 December 2013, a provision for
impairment of inventories of RMB873,000 (2012: RMB166,000)
was recognised in the consolidated income statement within cost
of goods sold.

(d) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and Mainland
China. Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.

Provision for withholding tax that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries is subject to
management's estimates that the Company controls the dividend
policies of these subsidiaries.

(e) Research and development costs

Critical judgement by the Group’s management is applied when
deciding whether the recognition requirements for development
costs have been met. This is necessary as the economic success
of any product development is uncertain and may be subject to
future technical problems at the time of recognition. Judgements
are based on the best information available at each balance sheet
date. In addition, all internal activities related to the research and
development of new products is continuously monitored by the
Group’s management.
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\ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & 3tBt i HmzRM =

5. Turnover and segment information

(a) Turnover

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing of fine
chemicals from natural resources for use in aroma chemicals and
pharmaceutical products and the trading of natural materials and
fine chemicals. Turnover for the Group represents revenue from
the sale of goods.

5. HEBEKDIHEHR

() EXE

AEBEERENARABERRERALEm - A
ARTECERRBEEMURBEERRRRRIE
AEEm AEEZEXBENHEERAEEZNK

Eo

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET T ARETTT
Sale of goods (net of value-added tax) HEER(DMBRIEETR) 1,227,295 1,057,371

(b) Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Executive Directors. The Executive Directors review the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. The Executive Directors have determined
the operating segments based on these reports. The Executive
Directors consider the business from product perspective.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group was organised
into two main operating segments:

(1) manufacturing and selling of fine chemicals; and
2) trading of natural materials and fine chemicals.

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2013 are as

(b) D ERE R

WITEEATBRLLRESE - WITEESEMAEE
WA RE - UFTERBERSEER - ITERE
ZEREEHDEBEHE - ATESNRERARERE
EBHMEE -

BE-T-=5+-A=1—A%E A%EHA
MAEEMEH D 2 -

(1) HEEMEERALCER: R
@ EBEAREHRBAECRR -

BE_ZT-=F1T_A=1t"HLEFEZHHBEA

follows:

LUNNE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT
Revenue g
Manufacturing HE 939,973 840,418
Trading 25 287,322 216,953
Total revenue walr s 1,227,295 1,057,371
Segment results D EBEELE
Manufacturing HE 249,692 221,680
Trading = 26,615 9,946
Unallocated corporate expense — net AOBARIZH —F5 (57,121) (44,130)
Finance costs, net B REE A ~ SHEE (20,548) (23,493)
Income tax expense FrSfiAx (48,716) (35,914)
Share of losses of associates JE (Bt 28 5 18 (474) (267)
Profit for the year INEEHE T 149,448 127,822

ANNUAL REPORT 2013« —2—=%£4% \ 81 \



\ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & 3tBt i HmzRM =

S EE R )

5. Turnover and segment information (continued) 5. $5E%8

(b) Segment information (continued) (b) SHBERE)

Other segment items included in the consolidated income HAGHKWBRZEMOLBEBBELT -

statement are as follows:

Manufacturing

EE

Trading
25

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT | ARBTE | ARBTT | AR®ETT
Depreciation (Note 7) e (HE7) 38,479 34,664 76 86
Amortisation (Notes 6 and 8)  #$5 (Hi5E6K8) 8,136 9,551 - -
Provision for impairment of B EERERE
intangible assets (Note 8) (Mtzx8) - 2,353 - -
Provision for impairment of FEREBERE
inventories (Note 12) (MizE12) 873 166 - -
Provision for/(reversal of) TR BR FURE R R, (B )
impairment of trade (B$3E13)
receivables (Note 13) 1,995 525 111 (138)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2013 and RN
capital expenditure for the year then ended are as follows:

REEZ

E—=Ft+-A=+—BZEERBEIIA
BIEFEzZERRAMAT :

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Segment assets DEEE
Manufacturing HE 1,186,689 953,134
Trading 25 81,047 103,071
Pledged bank deposits B ZRITER 32,092 98,271
Cash and cash equivalents B NIRSEEY 901,307 833,919
Other corporate assets Hih AT EE 26,534 22,635
Total assets BEEMRE 2,227,669 2,011,030

Segment liabilities FEEE
Manufacturing g E 86,137 235,712
Trading 25 21,832 35,116
Bank borrowings RITER 733,276 493,188
Deferred tax liabilities LURIEEF 23,200 18,200
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFTS R AaE 14,653 7,976
Other corporate liabilities Hib AR EE 31,756 31,671
Total liabilities BiE%%E 910,854 821,863
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5.  Turnover and segment information (continued) 5. $HEZERDY

-
pii
’;;g
by
N

(b) Segment information (continued)

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETFIT
Capital expenditure EREX
Manufacturing HE 46,928 47,902
Trading 25 21 11
46,949 47,913
Segment assets consist primarily of land use rights, property, S EEELIZEELMERE VX HELR

plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and - EBFEE  FERERIIE - DHEERFEL
receivables. Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. They & &f&E - Fll A BHFEREeAERBEEEE  HEK
exclude items such as cash and cash equivalents, taxation and  AFIEEFIEE - EAMI BIEDE « BE MEE
corporate borrowings. Capital expenditure comprises additions — (Fi#E7) A R ER S E (HifEs) 2 8RB R E B - 1 (F
to property, plant and equipment (Note 7) and intangible assets ~ FB# 2514 (Ff5£33) °

(Note 8) and deposits for the acquisition of land use rights (Note
&8,

The Group’s sales within the two operating segments are made to ~ ANEBRAKLE D BR=ZFAEBHELE -
customers in three main geographical areas.

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
Turnover SR

— Mainland China — i B R i 1,004,028 809,336
- Europe — BUM 84,708 111,593
- Asia (excluding Mainland China) — N (R B A BRIN) 75,042 50,970

— Others —Hth 63,517 85,472
1,227,295 1,057,371
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5.  Turnover and segment information (continued)

(b) Segment information (continued)

Sales are allocated based on the places/countries in which
customers are located.

5. HEREKDHER(E)

(b) DEER(E)
HEBDREFPMENR, BRI °

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARBTT

Total assets EEHAE
— Mainland China — A B i 2,168,813 1,975,105
- Hong Kong — 55 54,763 31,621
- Others —H A 4,093 4,304
2,227,669 2,011,030

Total assets are allocated based on where the assets are located.

No geographical analysis of capital expenditure is presented as
substantially all of the Group’s capital expenditure was incurred in
respect of assets located in Mainland China.

Revenues of RMB171,196,000 (2012: RMB236,133,000) and
RMB114,734,000 (2012: RMB89,028,000), respectively, are
derived from two major customers. These revenues are mainly
attributable to the manufacturing segment.
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\ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & 3tBt i HmzRM =

6. Land use rights — Group 6. THFAE-£E

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid AREFER T HFEPE RRETANAKETEERIE
operating lease payments and their net book values are analysed IREEESESTWOT :

as follows:

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT

In Mainland China, held on: REREAMmEE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10E50FMHE 8,848 9,079

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTIT

At 1 January —H—H 9,079 9,310
Amortisation of prepaid operating TR & T & SR IE A 54

lease payments (Note 24) (FFsE24) (231) (231)

At 31 December +=-—B=+—8H 8,848 9,079

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 « —®—=%%#% \ 85 \



\ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & 3tBt i HmzRM =

Property, plant and equipment - Group

7.

W% BERRE-KHE

Leasehold
improvements,
office fumiture
and equipment
Plant and HEME Motor Construction-
Buidings ~ machinery &+ il vehicles  in-progress
BT BERES & ] "E HEIR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETRT  ARBTr ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETx
At1 January 2012 R=Z--%-A-A
Cost KA 125,118 308,042 11,076 4,313 92,373 540,922
Accumulated depreciation ZiHnE (22,113) (119,750) (7,424) (3,713 - (153,000)
Net book amount REFE 108,005 188,292 3,652 600 92,373 387,922
Year ended 31 December 2012 HZE=-F-—%
tZB=t-ALEE
Opening net book amount FUREFE 103,005 188,292 3,652 600 92,373 387,922
Additions NE - 1,968 1,362 - 27,624 30,954
Transfers B 29,673 80,860 - - (110,533) -
Disposals & - 7 (111) - - (118)
Depreciation (Note 24) wE (M) 4,029) (29,161) (1,388) (172) - (34,750)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 128,649 241,952 3515 428 9,464 384,008
At 31 December 2012 RNZE-—F
TZA=t-H
Cost AR 164,791 390,839 12,197 4313 9,464 571,604
Accumulated depreciation 2itE (26,142) (148,887) (8,682) (3,885) - (187,59)
Net book amount FEFE 128,649 241,952 3,515 428 9,464 384,008
Year ended 31 December 2013 ~ HZE-Z-=F
+ZA=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount FNEEFE 128,649 241,952 3,515 428 9,464 384,008
Additions NE - 1,469 340 105 8,958 10,872
Transfers FLac - 8,390 - - (8,390) -
Disposals hE - = (149) () = (155)
Impairment A = = = - (1,329) (1,329)
Depreciation (Note 24) WE(MA) (4,899) (32,678) (835) (149) - (38,555)
Closing net book amount FREMEA 123,750 219,133 2,871 384 8,703 354,841
At 31 December 2013 R-E-=F
TZA=t-H
Cost AR 154,791 400,692 12,157 4,300 8,703 580,643
Accumulated depreciation ZitirE (31,041)  (181,559) (9,286) (3,916) - (225,802)
Net book amount FOFE 123,750 219,133 2,871 384 8,703 354,841

The Group’s buildings and buildings under construction, totalling
RMB124,052,000 (2012: RMB128,649,000) are in Mainland
China with lease terms of 50 years up to December 2047,
December 2048, May 2053 and April 2054, respectively.

ANEB BT MERETFTA 124,052,000t AR
M (—F—— 4 : 128,649,0007C ARKE) - 2R
H A ZiE i £ HEAES0F @ DR =FW
t&F+=-A —FEONF+=A  ZZTH=FHA
B -—ZRIEMEA fEim o
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7. Property, plant and equipment - Group
(continued)

Depreciation expense of RMB35,414,000 (2012: RMB31,510,000)
has been charged in ‘cost of goods sold’ and RMB3,141,000
(2012: RMBS3,240,000) in ‘administrative expenses’.

An analysis of construction-in-progress is as follows:

7. WX BERRE-KEE)

WEBHEEMR35414,000 C AR (S — — 4
31,510,000t AR EEEEMAARIFZE -
3,141,000 A R¥(=ZF — =4 : 3,240,00070 A
RE)RIFTA [FTEER IF -

ERIREAFTNT :

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARETTT

Construction costs of buildings BFREM A 302 -

Cost of leasehold improvements and HEMERE BER
plant and machinery MBS XA 8,401 9,464
8,703 9,464
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8. Intangible assets — Group 8. HBEIEEE-£E
Product
development
costs
Em
B 2L A AN
RMB’000
ARBET T
At 1 January 2012 R-ZE——F—-H—H
Cost %N 105,418
Accumulated amortisation and impairment Rt RORE (60,623)
Net book amount IREFE 44,795
Year ended 31 December 2012 BE-E——-F+-_HA=+—HILEE
Opening net book amount HYIEREFE 44,795
Additions NE 16,959
Amortisation (Note 24) R (FyaEo4) (9,320)
Provision for impairment (Note 24) BERE(E24) (2,353)
Closing net book amount B BREFE 50,081
At 31 December 2012 R-ZZE——F
+ZB=+—8H
Cost B 122,377
Accumulated amortisation and impairment RFHEEE MORE (72,296)
Net book amount REFE 50,081
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE_ZE—=F+-A=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount HERERE 50,081
Additions NE 6,040
Amortisation (Note 24) g (feE24) (7,905)
Closing net book amount B BREDFE 48,216
At 31 December 2013 HN—_E—=
+=ZB=+—H
Cost B%N 128,417
Accumulated amortisation and impairment R RORE (80,201)
Net book amount BREFE 48,216
Notes: Bt 5
(a) Amortisation of RMB7,905,000 (2012: RMB9,320,000) is included in (a) 7,905,000t AR 2 #88 (=F — =4 : 9,320,000
‘cost of goods sold’ in the consolidated income statement. TARKE)ESHRERPAA EEERKAIA ©
(o) During the year ended 31 December 2013, no provision for impairment (o) REBIEE-T—=F+_A=+—HILFERN ' L&
of intangible assets (2012: RMB2,353,000) had been included in ‘cost EREEREBE(ZT—=F :2,353,000t AR¥ ) EE
of goods sold’ in the consolidated income statement. P ERPEA EEERKAIA ©
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9. Investments in and amounts due from 9. WKHBAGZEREREWKEB AT
subsidiaries - Company g — N T

31 December 31 December

2013 2012
—=E—= —F——4&F
+=A=+-8 +=A=t+-"
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Unlisted investments, at cost JEEMIRE - RAE 91,713 91,713
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note a) FEUCH B A =13 (Miska) 700,061 373,966
Interests in subsidiaries KRB AR Z xS 791,774 465,679
Less: W
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSH B R Bl FUB
— current portion (Note b) —mENELMD (MisEb) (400,286) (114,985)
Investments in and amounts due from KRB AR ZIRE KR IEW
subsidiaries — non-current portion M1 B A B I8 — IEREE D 391,488 350,694
Notes: B 5
(a) The balance includes amounts due from subsidiaries of (a) Z P E B IERE RS A B M B /) 508 ££299,775,0007T A
RMB299,775,000 (2012: RMB258,981,000) which are equity funding R¥(ZT—=4 : 258,981,000t ARK) ©
in nature.
(b) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest (b) FEUSH B A R SRR ER R - AT S R AEEKE
bearing and are repayable on demand. b0
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9. Investments in and amounts due from 9. HRHEBATZHRBEREWKELRDT
subsidiaries - Company (continued) HIE—NF (&)

The particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 BE2—_ZT—=%+—-A=1+—H8 ' A2 ZKEBA
December 2013: R :

Percentage of
equity interest
Issued and fully  attributable to

Place of paid up capital the Group (a)
establishment  Activities BETR AEEREGRE
R L1t 2 TEEK BRBRA A7t
EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Limited (a) British Virgin Islands Investment holding US$95,000 100%
RBRAEE  RAEKR 95,000%7T
EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Manufacturing Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding US$1 100%
EBRAES REER 1T
EcoGreen Fine Chemicals B.V. Netherlands Sale of fine chemicals EUR18,000 100%
ai | HERMER 18,0008 %
EcoGreen Holding B.V. Netherlands Investment holding EUR18,000 100%
ol REER 18,0008 7%
EcoGreen Investments Limited Hong Kong Investment holding HK$2 100%
Pl TEEERAR) BB REER 2B
Sino Bright Interational Trading Limited Hong Kong Inactive HK$10,000 100%
HEEREHERANA BB EEXS 10,000/ 7T
Doingcom International Limited Hong Kong Trading of fine chemicals HK$20,000,000 100%
IRERAR A e BERAER 20,000,000/ 7T
Xiamen Doingcom Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (b) Mainland China  Manufacturing of fine RMB50,000,000 100%
EF AR BRAED) B A chemicals 50,000,0007C A R
EERMCER
HEEIEER AT Mainland China  Research and development US$2,000,000 100%
(Shanghai Fine Chemicals Company Limited) (0)(c) F Bl A of fine chemicals 2,000,000%7T

MR RFAEEA T ER

Xiamen Doingcom Chemical Co., Ltd. (o) Mainland China Manufacturing and sale of RMB190,000,000 100%

EFFEEEBR D) B fine chemicals 190,000,0007t A R #
HEREERAER

P IamEE SER2E0)0) Mainland China ~ Sale of forestry products RMB10,000,000 70%

(Chuxiong EcoGreen Forestry Trading Co., Ltd)) (b)c) R EIA# HEMEED 10,000,0007c A R 1
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RHE QR 2 RER BB A F
MIE— D\ (E)

BE-_ZT—=F+-A=+—H  £ARAFTZHWEAL
RIWAE « (&)

9. Investments in and amounts due from 9.
subsidiaries - Company (continued)

The particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31
December 2013: (continued)

Percentage of
equity interest
Issued and fully attributable to
Place of paid up capital the Group (a)
establishment  Activities BETR ANEEEGRE
BRI 2 FTEXK BRBAR Aatt()
EFRHESER AT Mainland China  Sale of fine chemnicals RMB20,000,000 100%
(Xiamen Doingcom Enterprise Limited) (b)(c) R A HERELER 20,000,0007T A R #&
Xiamen Sinoloon Import and Export Co., Ltd. (o) Mainland China Inactive RMB7,000,000 100%
EFZEE O BRARERAF(D) R A BEX 7,000,000T AR
Xiamen Sinotek Enterprise Development Co., Ltd. () ~ Mainland China Manufacturing and sale of RMB20,000,000 100%
EFRREEEEERAFD) Bl fine chemicals 20,000,0007C A R
HERHERBEEm
ENFREERE TER AR Mainland China ~ Manufacturing and sale of US$10,000,000 100%
{Zhangzhou EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Co., Ltd.) (b)) "R EIFH fine chemicals 10,000,000% T
HERHERBEER
EFFHRAER AT Mainland China ~ Manufacturing and sale RMB10,000,000 100%
(Xiamen Doingcom Food Co., Ltd.) (0)(c) Fh B A of food addictivesand ~ 10,000,0007C A R
seasoning
HERHER MR
R TCEM)BRAFD)E) Mainland China ~ Inactive RMB21,580,000 100%
(EcoGreen Chemicals (Zhangzhou) Co., Ltd.) (b)(c) R A FmER 21,580,0007T A R #&

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 » —2—=#%% \ Q1 \



<),

\ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & 3tBt i HmzRM =

Investments in and amounts due from
subsidiaries - Company (continued)

The particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31
December 2013: (continued)

Notes:

(@)

()

The shares of EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Limited are held directly by
the Company. The shares of other subsidiaries are held indirectly.

Xiamen Doingcom Chemical Co., Ltd. (“Xiamen Doingcom”) and
Xiamen Doingcom Biotechnology Co., Ltd. are sino-foreign owned
enterprises established in Xiamen, Fujian Province, Mainland China for
a term of 20 years up to October 2017 and July 2024, respectively.
Shanghai Fine Chemicals Company Limited is a wholly foreign
owned enterprise established in Shanghai, Mainland China for a
term of 35 years up to March 2025. Xiamen Doingcom Enterprise
Limited is a limited liability enterprise established in Xiamen, Fujian
Province, Mainland China for a term of 20 years up to June 2024.
Xiamen Sinoloon Import and Export Co., Ltd. and Xiamen Sinotek
Enterprise Development Co., Ltd. are wholly foreign owned enterprises
established in Xiamen, Fujian Province, Mainland China for a term of
28 years and 20 years up to April 2023 and July 2016, respectively.
Chuxiong EcoGreen Forestry Trading Co., Ltd. is a limited liability
enterprise established in Chuxiong, Yunnan Province, Mainland China
for a term of 30 years up to March 2037. Zhangzhou EcoGreen Fine
Chemicals Co., Ltd. is wholly foreign owned enterprise established in
Changtai Xian, Zhangzhou City, Fujian Province, Mainland China for a
term of 50 years up to April 2057. Xiamen Doingcom Food Co., Ltd.
is a limited liability enterprise established in Xiamen, Fujian Province,
Mainland China for a term of 20 years up to October 2031. EcoGreen
Chemicals (Zhangzhou) Co. Ltd. is a limited liability enterprise
established in Gulei Peninsula, Zhangpu Xian, Zhangzhou City Fujian
Province, Mainland China for a term of 20 years up in December 2032.

The English names are for identification purpose only.

Investments in associates — Group

<),

REBARZREREWHE LT

MIE— QA (E)

HEZZ—=F+-A=+—8 KRG ZHEA
AT : (4B)

EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Limitedf% {3 F 7N A 7 &
BE - HHEARRGAIFERS -

Bt 2GR AR REPPHEYRHRERAA
AERBENBEREEPITRL ZFIIEELE &
EHE_TF SR T tF+ARE_T_IF
t ALk - EBBIEEERARARF EAM EEH
R ZRINERE  KEHA=TRFE  E=FT=F
F=AIE - EPFIRHEZER DT AN EAMER
BEMMRYIZERARF  KEPA=-+F E=F
ZWHENALL - EFIRREHAOBRA R REMRE
BEEZRAERARGADINELE - EPEAMER
BEMMRY  KREMHSANAETN\ER=TF ' 5
MEZZT=_=FMAR=_ZT—A"FLAL - BHFIE
MHEBSARAFTNRTERNMEFEEHTRLZE
BAR KEMA=+FE_T=tF=HI1t - EM
PREACIERARA—HENERE EFER
WEEEEMNTRBEZKYL KREHARTTFE=ZT
AEFWALL - BEFfFHRABRAF AR EAM
RERAEMTKIZERAR  KEHA-TEFEE=
T=—F+ AL - FRIETCEM)BERARARTEH
A iERE EMNTE RS S EF BRI ZBRAF -
LA —+FEE—T=—F+_f|F

B ARTEEHRER] -

FERE-KHE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFIT

At 1 January »—HA—H 8,924 6,691
Addition 140 - 2,500
Disposal of an associate & — AR (1,338) -
Share of losses of associates FEAG B = 1R )RR (474) (267)
At 31 December ARt+-A=+—8 7,112 8,924
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10. Investments in associates — Group (continued) 10. B

RE-KE (&)

There are no contingent liabilities relating to Group’s interest in FARE S E - ANEBMEL( A EREE KR
associates and there are no contingent liabilities of the ventures St #E (AR B E

themselves.

Particulars of the associate are as follows: iR =L =71 [ N

Percentage of
equity interest

attributable to
Place of Fully paid the Group
establishment  Principal activities up capital AEBEENG
P37 3 2 FEEK HERA BREB DL
Wuhan Geyuan Fine Chemicals Co., Ltd. (a) Mainland China Manufacturing of RMB30,000,000 25%
RZEEREM L TER A ) I A fine chemicals 30,000,0007T
EERBRCER AR
Note: B 5
(a) Wuhan Geyuan Fine Chemicals Co., Ltd. is an unlisted company. (@) RERREALEIERARBIELTAR
(b) 35% equity interest in Jianyang Zhongtian Forestry Chemicals Co., (o) RAFENR - (h35% R A S 2 2BF AR EERA
Ltd. was disposed of during the year to another shareholder with a F]1A1,960,000t ARBEZREBHE T2 —ERRE - I
consideration of RMB1,960,000, resulting in a gain on disposal of EEH & a5 £622,000T AREE -
RMB622,000.

No summarised financial information of the associate has been  HZARINFENKELEERE @ HE LR AL

disclosed as the investment in the associate is not material. TEKX -

11. Available-for-sale financial assets - Group 1. AtHEsmEE -8

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBET T

At 1 January and 31 December MN—A—BEt+=-A=+—H

200 200

Available-for-sale financial assets are unlisted equity securities. A ESBMEE A EMRAE
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12. Inventories - Group

o
EY)
M
|
A
i)

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBFT

Raw materials JER 110,816 74,534
Work-in-progress TR 882 1,692
Finished goods EERK G 41,223 41,412
152,921 117,638

Less: Provision for impairment S OB B E (3,828) (2,955)
149,093 114,683

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in ‘cost of goods sold’ amounted to RMB799,262,000 (2012:

RMB684,058,000).

The provision for impairment of inventories of RMB873,000 (2012:
RMB166,000) has been included ‘cost of goods sold’ in the

consolidated income statement.

13. Trade receivables and bills receivable — Group

BREAIRAATERERKAIZFERER A
799,262,000 AR ¥ (== — =4 :684,058,0007T

AR¥) -

TFERBERHESTB00TARK(ZT —ZF :

166,0007C A REE)BEA TR [

EhERKA]

13. EBURARREREE -£H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

Trade receivables UL BRZX 531,108 381,655
Bills receivable e =R 495 -
531,603 381,655

Less: Provision for impairment B R E R (6,413) (4,307)
525,190 377,348

The carrying amounts of trade receivables and bills receivable

approximate their fair values.
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\ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & 3tBt i HmzRM =

13. Trade receivables and bills receivable -
Group (continued)

The credit period granted by the Group to its customers is
between 60 and 90 days. For certain customers with good credit
history, an extended period up to 180 days is allowed. The aging
analysis of trade receivables and bills receivable is as follows:

13. RUERMRKEBWRERE -S@(%E)

REBSTEES 2 EEH—RE0E0E « HNE
RTEEELNES  EEAFESI80AMEE
5 - EUERREKEE R FT -

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARBT T

0 to 30 days 0E30K 153,659 142,236
31 to 60 days 31E60X 146,986 94,178
61 to 90 days 61290X 88,064 61,258
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 140,849 80,316
181 to 365 days 181%E365K 932 3,172
Over 365 days 365K A 1,113 495
531,603 381,655

Less: Provision for impairment W R E RS (6,413) (4,307)
525,190 377,348

The credit quality of trade receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired can be assessed by reference to the historical
information about counter party default rates. The existing
counterparties do not have significant default in the past. There is
no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables,
as the Group has a large number of customers. The Group does
not hold any collateral as security.

As of 31 December 2013, trade receivables of RMB440,072,000
(2012: RMB320,426,000) were fully performing.

REBRHREFTR YRR HEEERER
RERNBKEERETFPNREREME - RENEP
TEBANER - ANAKBEEFPHEREN > 8H
MEKERZEERRIL EBOES - AERELR
BRA TR ERRIEER -

RZE-—Z=ZF+-A=+—-—H BREX
440,072,000t AR# (=T — =% : 320,426,000
TARK)EZHESRET -
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13. Trade receivables and bills receivable -
Group (continued)

As of 31 December 2013, trade receivables of RMB84,623,000
(2012: RMB56,922,000) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is
no significant financial difficulty and based on past experience,
the overdue amounts can be recovered. The ageing analysis of
these trade receivables is as follows:

13. BURREEBURE -SE(E)

R-FE—Z=F+-A=+—8 BEREFARK
84,623,0007T(—ZF——F : ARK#¥56,922,0007T)
KEBHAEYERE WERBESRZELES K
FHREENBIRRE  MABRBBELR  AHIE
A LAURE o 55 FEURBR SR ARER D AT AR T

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

91 to 180 days 91E180K 84,623 56,922

84,623 56,922
As of 31 December 2013, trade receivables of RMB6,413,000 R-ZT—=F+-HA=+—H ' BHRERXRAREK
(2012: RMB4,307,000) were impaired. The amount of the 6,413,000t (=& — =4 : AR #4,307,0007T )
provision was RMB6,413,000 as of 31 December 2013 (2012: KBEBHE R_Z—=F+_A=+—0H ' £

RMB4,307,000). The individually impaired receivables mainly
relate to a few independent customers which are in unexpectedly
difficult economic situations. The ageing of these receivables is as
follows:

SHAABARKE,413000L (=T —=—F : AR
4,307,0007T) ° EARBERERREZREA D EHE
RIBEAINY R ERER B LRSS o ILEERRK
RIBRERZAT :

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETFIT

91 to 180 days 91E2180K 4,368 640
181 to 365 days 181E 365K 932 3,172
Over 365 days 365 KA E 1,113 495
6,413 4,307
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13. Trade receivables and bills receivable -= 13.

Group (continued)

RUERA R BWRE - KB (&)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables and bills  Zx£= B & g U BR 7 K e Uk Z 35 &9 BR [ (B LA T 31| & 8
receivable are denominated in the following currencies: =YL VA

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFT

Renminbi AR 487,339 342,073
US dollar ETT 37,851 35,275
525,190 377,348

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables  FEWERFURMEBHHNESH T
are as follows:

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBETF T

At 1 January —H—H 4,307 3,920
Provision for impairment of trade receivable FEWER BB B 45 2,106 387
At 31 December +=-—A=+—H 6,413 4,307

The provision for impaired receivables have been included in  HERERKZANBEEREEEHRERTH (1T
‘administrative expenses’ in the consolidated income statement. HKEM A o fEBEEEF R HBROSRE — RS ETBH
Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written XL B 58 5NE S R sy o

off, when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.
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14. Prepayments and other receivables - Group 14. FENFREMERZ -EEER AT
and Company
Group Company
55 ATE]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT | ARETT | ARETT | ARKETT
Prepayments for purchases BERM
of raw materials SCENES 139,512 121,006 - -
Prepayments for product EE R B pK AN TR 3R
development projects 12,000 - - -
Input value-added tax AT U B3 TR
recoverable HEER 6,744 7,745 = -
Others Hittb 7,630 2,992 39 79
165,886 131,743 39 79
Less non-current portion: BIETRENELD ¢
Prepayments for product BE AR ATEN R
development projects (12,000) - - -
Other asset (Note a) HEmEE(WTa) (2,400) - - -
Prepayments and other TEAS 3 B LA R
receivables — current portion — mENEL D 151,486 131,743 39 79
Note: BsE -
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group made a payment (@) R-TB—=F+—A=+—HItZEER  ~AEE[HA

to REHEERRZMRMHBER AR (Tianjin Bohai Commodity
Exchange Limited) (“BCEx”) in the amount of RMB2,400,000 out
of the total contract amount of RMB12,000,000 as deposit for the
development cost of new product management software in relation to
the listing and trading of the Group’s major raw material — turpentine
under the trading name of “/ #iDoingcom” on BCEx’s exchange. As
at 31 December 2013, the listing or trading of turpentine had not taken
place.

The carrying amounts of other receivables approximate their fair

values and are mainly denominated in RMB. BI{E o
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15. Pledged bank deposits, cash and cash 15. BiRBZETES  BHERESZ
equivalents - Group and Company EBY-&EBRAT
Group Company
£& NG|
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT | ARBTT | ARETT | ARB T
Pledged bank deposits B2 RITIER 32,092 98,271 = -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY
— cash at bank and on hand —RITREFRS 901,307 833,919 7,169 634
933,399 932,190 7,169 634
The carrying amounts of pledged bank deposits, cash and cash ~ REBEFZETER  Re kB ETEYWHREE
equivalents are denominated in the following currencies: EHEKNSENT
Group Company
&= AT

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T | ARBTE | ARETT | ARETFT

Renminbi AR 911,287 922,495 - -
Hong Kong dollar BIT 3,254 2,972 908 588
US dollar e 18,419 6,306 6,261 46
Euro B 72 417 397 - -
Others Hib 22 20 - -
933,399 932,190 7,169 634

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB911,287,000 (2012:
RMB922,495,000) denominated in RMB. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency in international markets and its exchange
rate is determined by the People’s Bank of China.

At 31 December 2013, bank balances of RMB32,092,000 (2012:
RMB98,271,000) have been pledged to banks to secure credit
facilities granted to certain of the Group’s subsidiaries.

ERE 2 HBA -

The cash and cash equivalents are not exposed to material credit
risk.
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R-ZZE—=F+=-A=+—H - 32,092,000t AR

B(ZZT— 4% : 98,271,000t AR ) 2 $R1T1EK
BT AKIFEAARNEE LB QA mEITEREE

RehkReEBYLREEANEERR -



\ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ & 3tBt i HmzRM =

16. Share capital, premium and share options - 16. BA& - ZERERE-E£EER AT
Group and Company

(a) Share capital - Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each (a) BAR—EREEI1BITZEER
Nominal value
Number of of ordinary
CHENCH CHECH
Authorised: EE B TRAREE
’000 RMB’000
F&t ARBTT
At 1 January 2012, RZZE——F—H—H8-
31 December 2012 —E-——F+-_A=+—BK
and 31 December 2013 —E—=%+-A=+—H 2,000,000 212,000

Fully paid Value of
shares ordinary SHETE)

=51 shares  premium

Issued: : RHOEE EHBEREE - ROEE

000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
Tt ARBTRT ARBTRT ARBTR

At 1 January 2012 RZZE——F—H—H 484,496 50,872 200,383 251,255
Cancellation of repurchased FESHE BIEERR 12 ()
shares (i) (1,118) (91) (913) (1,004)
At 31 December 2012 and WZE—_F
31 December 2013 +=ZA=+—8xk
—ET—=fF
+—A=+—H 483,378 50,781 199,470 250,251
Note: B 5
(i) During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company cancelled a (i) AR R AR AN (B ()7 2012F 12 AB1BERA » AA A
total of 1,118,000 shares of which 726,000 shares were repurchased HEE§E1,118,0008% * EA726,000 fA201241 A A
at a price from HK$1.47 to HK$1.69 each in January 2012 and the BR1.47TETEGR1.69BTTHERE « HR392,000%
remaining 392,000 shares were repurchased at a price from HK$1.62 R2011E12 A31 B IEFEANABR1.62B TE B
to HK$1.96 each in the year ended 31 December 2011. 1.96 LiEE °
(b) Share options (b)  EERREE
Share options are granted to directors and to selected — EEMALHKE B T o] IR IERAE o FTI T A BE AR
employees. The exercise price of the granted options is equal  #MITEERSRKX T ABROMEXZER LB

to the market price of the shares on the date of the grant or the ~ BRI AER Z ARG 2 FHWHE  LRaEAR
average closing prices of the shares for the five trading days % - BABRECREEAEZE =FHH (LT H)
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant, whicheveris  BXR% T - EHHEBEEENE—ERSEMNE
higher. The share options would vest progressively from the grant 8 ° BERRERI AR H B 8RB 10F RITE - AEE
date to the third year after the grant (the vesting period) provided — I7#EEE sk E B @ AR S BRI sk (E (T 2% -
that the relevant employee remained employed by the Group.

Share options are exercisable up to 10 years after the grant date.

The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase

or settle the share options in cash.
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16. Share capital, premium and share options - 16. BZ& - HERERE-EER QA
Group and Company (continued) &)

(b)  Share options (continued) (b) BREE)
During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013, thereisno R-ZE——F+-_HA=+—HE-ZT—=%+—-H4
movement in the outstanding share options. =tTt—BZFER @ MARTTEZERELSE LR

MBI -

As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2013, total number of R —F+-_A=+—HEZ-ZZ—=F+=-AH1
outstanding share options of the Group is 8,030,000 and all these ~ =+—H + AN&EE£58,030,00074K1T{5 K FEATHE

options were exercisable. EERESHNOATFITEREFHERTEERAS
f&%1.377 7T ©

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the EERERTENERENDSHBFNTEEN T
following expiry dates and exercise prices:

Share options

BB R A
Exercise price
per share 2013
Expiry date Ep-t=! BRITEE —E-=F
HK$ ’000 ’000
BIT Fat Tz
June 2014 —E-ERA 1.37 8,030 8,030
17. Other reserves - Group and Company 17. Hitt#E -—KER QA
(a) GI’OUp (a) £E3

Capital
redemption Share
Capital Contributed  Statutory reserve options

reserve surplus  reserves  Note (iv) equity  Currency
Note (i) Note (i)  Note (i) RAEE reserve translation
RAfEE EBBRRK LEARR (i BIRE  reserve
(i) BEEEG)  BFERG) Mat(v) RARE EXRE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREBTR ARBTRT ARBTR ARBTR ARETR AREBTR

At 1 January 2012 R-E-—F—-A—H 685 9,500 51,357 620 2,577 (36) 64,703
Transfer from retained earnings REBBFEE - - 14,338 - - - 14,338
Cancellation of repurchased shares HHECEERR - - - 91 . - 91
Currency translation differences ERER - - - - - 9 9
Balance at 31 December 2012 RZZ-——F+=8

=t+—AzEH 685 9,500 65,695 711 2,577 @7) 79,141
At 1 January 2013 W=—Z-=5-8-H 685 9,500 65,695 71 2,577 (27) 79,141
Transfer from retained earnings RE B F|EE - - 25,801 - - - 25,801
Currency translation differences ERESR - - - - - (58) (58)
Balance at 31 December 2013 RZZ-=F+=A

=t+-Brz&% 685 9,500 91,496 71 2,577 (85) 104,884
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17. Other reserves — Group and Company 17.
(continued)

Hittf#F B - SKER QR (E

(b) Company (b) 27
Capital

redemption Share

Capital reserve options

reserve Note (iv) equity

Note (i) RAER reserve

RAGE ks R

irE () Wiy — RARE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETR AREFR ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2012 R-E-—E-F-Az&it 90,941 620 2,577 94,138
Cancellation of repurchased shares HHEEBRN - 91 - 91

Balance at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2013 ~ W=ZF--f+=ZA=+-AK

“E-ZE+-B=t+-AvER 90,941 711 2,577 94,229

Notes: B sk -

(i) Capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between the (0]
nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to
the share exchange on 16 February 2004 over the nominal value of the
share capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor.

Capital reserve of the Company represents the difference between the
costs of investments in subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the share
exchange on 16 February 2004 over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor.

(i) Contributed surplus represents the capital contribution from an (ii)
executive director and an indirect substantial shareholder of the
Company, as part of a group reorganisation exercise.

(iii) According to the articles of association of the relevant subsidiaries (iii)
established in Mainland China and the Mainland China rules and
regulations, Mainland China subsidiaries are required to transfer not
less than 10% of their net profit as stated in their annual financial
statements prepared under Mainland China accounting regulations
to statutory reserves before the corresponding Mainland China
subsidiaries can distribute any dividend. Such a transfer is not
required when the amount of statutory reserves reaches 50% of
the corresponding subsidiaries’ registered capital. The statutory
reserves shall only be used to make up losses of the corresponding
subsidiaries, to expand the corresponding subsidiaries’ production
operations, or to increase the capital of the corresponding
subsidiaries. Upon approval by resolutions of the corresponding
subsidiaries’ shareholders in general meetings, the corresponding
subsidiaries may convert their statutory reserves into registered capital
and issue bonus capital to existing owners in proportion to their
existing ownership structure. As at 31 December 2013, the amount of
statutory reserves of Xiamen Sinotek Enterprise Development Co., Ltd.
had reached 50% of its registered capital and accordingly, no further
transfer to its statutory reserves has been made.
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17. Other reserves — Group and Company 17. HEMEHE -—SBERAT(E)

(continued)
(b) Company (continued) (b) NE(E)
Notes: (continued) MizE : (&)

(iv) The capital redemption reserve relates to the cancellation of the (iv) AR FH B ETHEAR R Z RN B -
Company’s own shares.

(v) The Company’s other reserves totalled RMB293,699,000 (2012: (v) RERSBEERRDE(BATAR) - KRR AIHE S IR
RMB293,699,000) which, under the Company Law (revised) of %% 5293,699,000t AR (ZT —=F .
the Cayman Islands subject to certain conditions, are available for 2983,699,0007T A R¥) °

distribution to shareholders.

18. Borrowings - Group and Company 18. BE-&SEEBEKAF
Group Company
&8 N

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET | ARBTT | ARETT | ARETT
Non-current FERE

Government loans BB R 1,850 2,300 - -~
Bank borrowings RITIEE 298,894 - 208,894 -
300,744 2,300 298,894 -

Current BNERR ED
Government loans BB R 1,120 1,120 = -
Bank borrowings RITIEE 434,382 493,188 124,288 97,121
435,502 494,308 124,288 97,121
Total borrowings BEHLE 736,246 496,608 423,182 97,121

Terms and maturity of the government loans are as follows: B B SRR R R SR AN T

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT

Repayable in 2014 to 2018, BN _E—NFEE2 T N\FH
interest-bearing at 2.6% per annum BE U2 6BEFEFEA 2,300 2,750
Repayable on demand, BUHER(E & -
non-interest bearing %8 670 670
2,970 3,420
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HE-KERIF(E)
R-F—=F+-A=+—A FEERENER

18. Borrowings — Group and Company (continued) 18.

At 31 December 2013, the Group's borrowings were repayable as

follows: HALN R -
Group Company
8 A7
Bank borrowings Government loans Bank borrowings
RITEE B ER RITEE
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E-=F -—Z--f C—E-Z=f&
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARETR | ARBTR | ARETR | AR%TR | AR¥TR
Within 1 year —FLAR 434,382 493,188 1,120 1,120 124,288 97,121
Between 1 and 2 years —EEMEF 198,407 - - 450 198,407 -
Between 2 and 5 years MEERF 100,487 - 1,850 1,350 100,487 -
Over 5 years ik - - - 500 - -
733,276 493,188 2,970 3,420 423,182 97,121
Group Company
&8 AT
Bank borrowings Government loans Bank borrowings
RITEE BIER RITEE
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E-=F -—Z--F —E-Z=E&
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARMTR | ARBTR | ARETR | AR%TR | ARETR
Wholly repayable within hEREHER
5 years 733,276 493,188 2,970 670 423,182 97,121
Wholly repayable after hEREHER
5 years - - - 2,750 - -
733,276 493,188 2,970 3,420 423,182 97,121
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18.

18. Borrowings — Group and Company (continued)

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as
follows:

HE-KERIF(E)
REHB 2 ERFRMT -

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTTT
Government loans BITER 2.0% 2.0%
Bank borrowings RITIEE 4.6% 5.4%
The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair values. ~ EXHBRE{ESEE A BRI ©
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the ERRREE B NI ERRENT
following currencies:
Group Company
£E AT]

RMB’000 | RMB’000 | RMB’000 | RMB’000

ARETT | ARETT | ARSTT | ARET T

Renminbi AR 281,423 312,281 = -
Hong Kong dollar BT 8,477 27,985 - -
US dollar ETT 446,346 156,342 423,182 97,121
736,246 496,608 423,182 97,121
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18. Borrowings — Group and Company (continued) 18.

AEEBTIRERERRE

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

BE-KERARE)

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT

Floating rate N
— expiring within one year — —FREIH 698,260 661,908
— expiring beyond one year — — L 5 47,044 -
745,304 661,908

Bank borrowings and bills payable of RMB164,342,000 (2012:
RMB247,714,000) are supported by corporate guarantees
provided by the Company, bank borrowings and bills payable of
RMB576,678,000 (2012: RMB296,428,000) are supported by
cross guarantees between subsidiaries. FEER -
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest-rate changes
and the contractual repricing dates at the balance sheet dates are
as follows:

EBRMATAENRRLDT :

Group

BT E R K IERFE K 164,342,000t AR (=
T— % 247,714,000 AR®E) A AR R EX
1 RITEFRREN FES76,678,0007C AR
(ZF—=% : 206,428,000 A R¥) AR B X R (&

REER  ARBNEFREMNTEHRANERTE

Company

] N

RMB’000 | RMB’000 | RMB’000 | RMB’000
ARBTT | ARKETT | ARETT | ARKETT
6 months or less ERETSN 588,512 465,858 392,698 97,121
6-12 months 6—1218 8 145,884 28,450 30,484 -
1-5 years 1—5%F 1,850 1,800 = -
Over 5 years 5F AL - 500 - -
736,246 | 496,608 | 423,182 97,121

19. Trade payables and bills payable - Group 19. BENRIREENEE -&H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBT T

Trade payables FE T BRIK 23,058 29,824
Bills payable IS 81,941 237,584
104,999 267,408
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19. Trade payables and bills payable - Group 19. EFNERERENMERE -£8(£)

(continued)

ENEARENERREEZ A ZREDNTET

The aging analysis of trade payables and bills payable based on
invoice date were as follows:

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFTT

0 to 30 days 0& 30Kk 26,376 80,363
31 to 60 days 31E60K 11,021 46,006
61 to 90 days 61290k 40,452 33,979
91 to 180 days 91E180K 23,980 105,212
181 to 365 days 181 % 365K 1,725 983
Over 365 days HBiBE365K 1,445 865
104,999 267,408

ENERRENREREERELR
BEUARBGE -

The carrying amounts of trade payables and bills payable nEMRE B=x

approximate their fair values and are mainly denominated in RMB.

Bills payable are secured by pledged bank deposits of the  EIEEUARRRZBITHERIEEA

Company.

20. Accruals and other payables - Group and 20. &zt &M & EMERTK—
N\

Company SBEAT]
Group Company
£E NG|

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT | ARBETE | ARBTT | AR®TT
Payable for construction costs and JEZEM A K EE
property, plant and equipment M - BE R&
FER 2 3,162 3,737 = -
Output value-added tax payable  JEfT4IEIEZ(E 8,392 5,880 - -
Accruals for FERT
— Administrative, selling and —1THK - HERTS
marketing expenses HEER 13,478 16,627 1,642 2,141
— Government loan interest —BIFERF B 4,093 4,093 = -
29,125 30,337 1,642 2,141
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20. Accruals and other payables - Group and 20. EFERANHL
Company (continued) SERATE(E)

The carrying amounts of other payables approximate their fair ~ EfhEMNZEEEREALERE  BFEUAR
values and are mainly denominated in RMB. Bt HEE -

TTEERTRE-SERAF

21. Derivative financial instruments — Group and  21.

Company
Group Company
&8 A
2013 2013 2012
“E-=F “E-=E “EfF
Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
BE Bf BE Af BE Bf BE B
RMB’000  RMB'000 | RMB'000  RMB'000 | RMB’000  RMB'000 | RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR | ARETT ARETR | ARETR ARETR | ARETR ARETR
Interest rate swaps GilEd:p - 1,840 - 564 - 1,840 - 564
Forward foreign exchange contracts EHNEAR
- held-for-trading -BRABNMEA - - 151 - - - - -
Total st - 1,840 151 564 - 1,840 - 564
Less non-current portion: EESEE R
Interest rate swaps flxg#H - (1,840) - - - (1,840) - -
Current portion i - - 151 564 - - - 564

(a) Forward foreign exchange contracts

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward foreign
exchange contracts at 31 December 2012 were RMB6,286,000.
There was no outstanding forward foreign exchange contract as
at 31 December 2013.

(b) Interest rate swap contracts

The Group entered into interest rate swap contracts to mitigate
the exposure to the interest rate risk associated with the Group's
borrowings. These contracts expire in May 2016.

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate
swap contracts at 31 December 2013 were RMB310,942,000
(2012: RMB97,425,000).

At 31 December 2013, the fixed interest rate is 5.18% (2012:
3.84%), and the main floating rate is LIBOR.
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R-ZT——F+=-A=+—8 " IREZENRBI
EARRREANSEE A6,286,000T AR « A=F
—=F+-"A=+—8 ' WENREENRERIINE

&R -

(b) R=EEHED

AEER LA EEHEHARBEREBEER AT
MFERER - WEANBR B R"ELAEW °

R-E—=F+_A=+—8 " ALEENFIXE
BARRBRTESEE 310,942,000 ARK (=5 —
Z 4 97,425,000 AREE) o

RZE—=F+_A=+—H ' ' EEFEXAE518E
(ZZ——F :384E) MEEWZEFNREMBZ
RITRIFERE ©
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22. Deferred income tax - Group

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same fiscal authority. The following balances, determined
after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated
balance sheet:

22. EEEFTSHIE-KHE

ERELAEANHTENKENNAEERZHVHER
B - BREMSHEEMA B RFE—HHEH
B AR EEREHEEMNABEEREHE - Z8
AT R — B R AR RIEMSHEERE
REHTLAT

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Deferred income tax assets to be i@ 218 B 12 Uk [0l Y R T
recovered after more than 12 months TSR EE 2,408 2,623
Deferred income tax liabilities to be ERi@1 218 A 18 Uk o] #y R A
settled after more than 12 months FrisfiaE (23,200) (18,200)

The gross movements on the deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are as follows:

EEFTSTHARNEZEIT ¢

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTT

At beginning of year £ (15,577) (8,785)
Charged to the consolidated income HEHWERA

statement (Note 27) &t (M3E27) (5,215) (6,792)

At end of year FIR (20,792) (15,577)
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22. Deferred income tax — Group (continued)

Deferred income tax assets

22. EEFSHIA-KE(HE)
EIEFT 8B AE — £

Provision for
impairment of

inventories Tax loss
FERERE GIE:%il) %=
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®T T AR¥T T
At 1 January 2012 —E—-——F—H—H 2,601 2,614 5,215
(Charged)/credited to the EEHEERA

consolidated income statement  (f&52), B (H:x27)

(Note 27) (2,601) 9 (2,592)
At 31 December 2012 —E2——F+-A=+—H - 2,623 2,623
Charged to the consolidated EA R EZERA

income statement (Note 27) fast (M5E27) - (215) (219)
At 31 December 2013 —E—=%+=-A=+—H - 2,408 2,408

At 31 December 2013, the Group has unused tax losses of
RMB49,349,000 (2012: RMB40,662,000) available for offsetting
against future profits, and a deferred income tax asset of
RMB2,408,000 (2012: RMB2,623,000) has been recognised
in respect of such losses. No deferred income tax asset has
been recognised in respect of a total of RMB8,034,000 (2012:
RMB6,134,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams.

At 31 December 2013, deferred income tax liabilities of
RMB66,494,000 (2012: RMB57,840,000) has not been
recognised for the withholding tax and other taxes that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries as
the Company controls the dividend policies of these subsidiaries
and it is not probable that these subsidiaries would distribute
earnings in the foreseeable future. Unremitted earnings
totalled RMB664,944,000 as at 31 December 2013 (2012:
RMB578,404,000).
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B EERRASELCHEHREENEEARE
49,349,0007t (= ZE — —4F : A R #40,662,000
TL) v R IRIE IR P] BEEE A MR PR B AR B F 3R &Y
HEHRBAHEMER  CHERELCHEREEAA
R #2,408,0007( =T ——4F : AR#¥2,623,000
JL) o ANEEWER A L EUIKERRERARE
8,034,000t (—Z——4 : AR#¥6,134,0007T) °

A& B a5 5] 5 M B A R MR B &R B & K
BRAAEAREHARRTEHAERFBEED S
it AEBTRRETFT FRRNKRERFEAE
F AR R I AT S B AN h Y I R SRR T PR S B
BEARKGB6,494,000 (= E——F : AR
57,840,0007T ) ° It ERIE R W= BIER AR
ZE-R-E—=F+-A=+—HBHHRERKZS
& AR#EB64,944,000T(—E——F : AR
578,404,0007T) °
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22. Deferred income tax — Group (continued) 22.

Deferred income tax liabilities

EEREHAE K&

ELEFTEHIE - K@ (&)

Withholding tax
KRHFEH

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
At 1 January —H—H 18,200 14,000
Charged to the consolidated income EA PR AE R (M FE27)
statement (Note 27) 5,000 4,200
At 31 December +=-—A=+—H 23,200 18,200
23. Other (losses)/gains - net 23. Hib(IB%x) = — FE

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®ETF T
Realised gains on derivative financial PTHESRTACEE
instruments & 1,477 669
Income on government grants BT sk 2 Was 325 406
Net exchange losses (Note 28) SFIE H 1B K (FF5E28) (4,932) (86)
Net fair value (losses)/gains on derivative TESRITENAR
financial instruments BE(ER) M (1,427) 3,167
Provision for impairment of property, Y -~ BB LR ERERE
plant and equipment (Note 7) (BaE7) (1,329) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and LEWME - BE REE 2 EE
equipment (148) -
Gain on disposal of an associate (Note 10) &L~ iz (M3E10) 622 -
Others EAh (342) 66
(5,754) 4,222
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24. Expenses by nature

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBEFT
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease ~ TEfH& 4 4 518
payments (Note 6) 58 (MsEe) 231 231
Depreciation (Note 7) #res (fisr7) 38,555 34,750
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8) 4E 77 & &= 4 (P :X8) 7,905 9,320
Provision for impairment of intangible mREERE
assets (Note 8) B (FaEs) = 2,353
Provision for impairment of inventories GFERERH
(Note 12) (Mf7F12) 873 166
Provision for impairment of trade JEW R FURE
receivables (Note 13) B (HEE13) 2,106 387
Employee benefit expense (Note 25) 1EEEFFRZ (fTsE25) 42,831 40,375
Cost of inventories (Note 12) GFERAMEI2) 799,262 684,058
Transportation B 14,727 16,466
Operating lease payments ZiEMERS 4,189 3,664
Auditor’s remuneration % BLE BN & 1,587 1,758
Utilities and electricity charges BRELE) I ROKEE R 31,711 32,118
Subcontracting expenses IMTEMA 10,302 1,304
Other PRC taxes H b AR B IE 16,358 19,717
Consumables and supplies VIR ERE 3,910 4,163
Bank charges RITER 1,853 2,181
Other expenses HinE A 25,955 21,086
Total cost of goods sold, selling and BEEEMKRA - HE
marketing costs and administrative RSB AR
expenses THER 1,002,355 874,097
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25. Employee benefit expense

25. EBERAFX

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT

Wages, salaries, other allowances and L& - %% - Hibi2as

benefits in kind REDF @ 38,323 36,667

Pension costs — defined contribution RIRERA —TE
plans (Note a) HHEEI (M 5Ea) 4,508 3,708
42,831 40,375

(a) Pensions - defined contribution plans

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China, the
Group contributes to a state-sponsored retirement plan for its
employees in Mainland China, which is a defined contribution
plan. The Group and its employees contribute approximately 12%
to 14% and 0% to 8%, respectively, of the employees’ salary as
specified by the local government, and the Group has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement plan is responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”),
a defined contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group and its Hong
Kong employees makes monthly contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund legislation. Both the Group’s and the employees’
contributions are subject to a cap of HK$1,250 per month.

During the year, the aggregate amount of the Group’s
contributions to the aforementioned retirement schemes was
approximately RMB4,508,000 (2012: RMB3,708,000). As at
31 December 2012, the Group was not entitled to any forfeited
contributions to reduce the Group’s future contributions.

(@) ERAERAN—EFEMARETE
REBEFEAWER  ARERETFEAMESR AR
RRA 2 EREFRNFBIER - AEBRHEESR
DRRM TR E 2 BEHEL12%E14% K
0% ZE8%HK - FRIFHFEHENIN - AREBAF
EEERINERASHEBRARREBNZEL - BRRA
A2 RS EIAERN TRKER Z —VIRKRE
FMELE -

ARBEELRHFEBRREBSEABIUETEAEELZ
ERERF BRI AR B (TRESE D -
RIFBIEDFE AEEREFEREATHERR
SREIMEATES GPIPTEE 2 B B W AS%% B st S
i MAKRERERSAHRKERS1,25087T

RNEE  NEBEBE LR KRS T8 2 HRRELD
#4,508,0007T A R# (== ——4 :3,708,0007T A
RI) e NZEBE——FE+-A=+—H  rEEWE
BRI SR AT AIER D H B A K -
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25. Employee benefit expense (continued) 25. EERBARZ(EZ)

(b) Directors’ emoluments (b) ===

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 BE T =F+_A=+—HIFE 8§52
December 2013 is set out below: eI T -

Salaries,
other Retirement
allowances benefit-
and benefits defined

in kind contribution
e plans
Name of Director HMER  BARER -
EENE wEe REVNEFN EHEENGE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR AR¥ETR ARET:R
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Yang Yirong BRI E
(Chairman and President) (EEFREH) - 2,224 25 2,249
Mr. Gong Xionghui ErEEEL - 687 23 710
Ms. Lu Jiahua EXRELL - 1,161 23 1,184
Mr. Lin Zhigang MR £ - 673 10 683
Mr. Han Huan Guang BEE A - 1,173 12 1,185
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Feng Tao HERE = = = -
Independent non-executive BYEHTES
directors
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen EREEE 173 12 - 185
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John mRALE 173 12 - 185
Mr. Lau Wang Yip, Derrick BIRELEE 173 12 - 185
519 5,954 93 6,566
Note: BREE -

None of the directors waived any emoluments during the year ended 31 HE-ZT—=F+-A=+—HLLFE WESHEHRETMAH
December 2013 (2012: Nil). & (ZT——%F: &)
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25. Employee benefit expense (continued) 25. EERBARZ(EZ)

(b) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (b) E=ME(E)

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 BE-_T——F+-_A=+—HIFE 852
December 2012 is set out below: eI T -

Salaries,
other Retirement
allowances benefit-
and benefits defined

in kind contribution
e plans
Name of Director HMER  BARER -
EERE wEe REVNEFN EHEENGE

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTT  ARETE ARBETT ARETRT

Executive directors HITES
Mr. Yang Yirong BRI E
(Chairman and President) (ERFBHE) - 2,110 19 2,129
Mr. Gong Xionghui BRHEEL A - 699 19 718
Ms. Lu Jiahua ERELZL - 1,076 19 1,095
Mr. Lin Zhigang MAER 4 - 554 9 563
Mr. Han Huan Guang BECLEE - 1,140 11 1,151
Non-executive director FHITES
Mr. Feng Tao HERE - - - -
Independent non-executive BYEHTES
directors
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen FRERE 176 13 - 189
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John HEREELAE 176 13 - 189
Mr. Lau Wang Yip, Derrick BIRERE 176 12 - 188

528 5,617 77 6,222
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25. Employee benefit expense (continued)

(c) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include four (2012: four) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining one (2012: one) individual
during the year are as follows:

25.
(c) FHEER

BERAMX(£E)
REFAL

$¢f$$@rm$ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁﬁf¢Ai@?ﬁ@fi

(ZF——F:Ofu)EE "

i 79 B %7 B 2 &

X&IJiﬁE’J PR RBR - AEETNRESR

(=ZZF—=

F D) ALEEBIT

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Basic salaries, other allowances and EAFH & « HAMhZERL
benefits in kind &ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ 686 690
Retirement benefit — defined contribution 3EKI&EF] — F 58
plans PR 12 11
698 701
During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, no ﬁﬁ_g—_¢&:§f§¢+iﬁi+—5¢¢
emoluments were paid to the directors or the five highest paid [E @ WEBAQREFAZ AL K= H AT E

individuals as an inducement to join or as compensation for loss

IS - (EARSIRMNE RS HERBERZHE -

of office.

26. Finance income and costs

26.

B W am B B AR

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T AREETF T
Interest expense on: FEBA:
- Bank borrowings wholly repayable —BARAFAZEEEZ
within five years RITEE (37,091) (32,283)
- Government loans wholly repayable —BARAFAREZEEEZ
within five years B ER (70) (82)
Net foreign exchange gains on financing  Bh& & B) AR BE 3 U as (M 5E28)
activities (Note 28) 9,666 119
(27,495) (32,246)
Less: amount capitalised on qualifying W ABEREEENM 8
assets - 1,992
Finance costs B TS AR AN (27,495) (30,254)
Finance income B e
— Interest income on short-term — 12 HRERI T 3R
bank deposits FE e 6,947 6,761
Net finance costs F B 7 K AR (20,548) (23,499)
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26. Finance income and costs (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, finance cost
capitalised have been calculated by applying a capitalisation rate
of 5.4% per annum on expenditure of qualifying assets.

27. Taxation

26. BB REA(E)

RZE——F+_A=+—HIEFERN  6EKE
TEIA B AMEE BB EERYT 25.4% °

27. ®iE

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Current tax RBHIA
— Mainland China corporate income tax — — B R ZETSH 43,501 29,122
Deferred income tax (Note 22) BT HLIE (Mi5E22) 5,215 6,792
48,716 35,914
Notes: B 5
(a) Hong Kong profits tax (a) BEBNEHR

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group had no assessable
profit arising in or derived from Hong Kong.

(b) Mainland China corporate income tax

The subsidiaries established in Mainland China are subject to Mainland
China corporate income tax at a rate of 25% (2012: 25%). One of the PRC
subsidiaries, Xiamen Doing Biotechnology Co. Ltd. has obtained approval from
Mainland China Tax Bureau to be exempted from corporate income tax for two
years starting from the first year of profitable operations, followed by a 50%
reduction in corporate income tax for the following three years. This preferential
tax treatment for Xiamen Doing Biotechnology Co. Ltd. was expired at the end
of 31 December 2012.

Xiamen Doingcom Chemicals Co. Ltd. was granted the High and New
Technology Enterprise (“‘HNTE”) status in July 2012 being valid for 3 years and
Xiamen Doingcom Chemicals Co. Ltd. is entitled to a preferential tax rate of
15%.

MR A B BEAEFEESERBERTORS] - F L EEE
BMER L EE -

(b) B At B FTAS BE

R B AR S 2 B R RZER25% (—F— —4F : 26%) 2%t
K@M BRI EREH - BEFIFSEMRRBRARERS
TEABTHERRRE B EENFERANCEMEHMRE -
HER=F20EMEHRARY - EFPHEYRRERAFR
R =FRETHZEHEES -

REZT—=—FtA  EFFHEDRBRERAGDERE TSI
T M - BE=F - MEPRHEDRERER QA AL
EEBRAS%EH
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27. Taxation (continued)

(c) Overseas income taxes

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and, accordingly, is exempted from Cayman Islands income tax.
The Company’s subsidiaries established in the British Virgin Islands are
incorporated under the International Business Companies Acts of the British
Virgin Islands and, accordingly, are exempted from British Virgin Islands
income tax.

(d) Mainland China value-added tax

The subsidiaries established in Mainland China are subject to Mainland China
value-added tax (“VAT”) at 17% (2012: 17%) of revenue from sale of goods in
Mainland China and entitled to a VAT export refund at 9% to 13% (2012: 9% to
13%) from sale of goods outside Mainland China. Input VAT paid on purchases
can be used to offset output VAT levied on sales to determine the net VAT
recoverable/payable.

(e) Withholding tax

Pursuant to the New Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. Withholding taxes are payable on dividends distributed/to
be distributed by those subsidiaries and an associate established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average
tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities and the
reconciliation is as follows:

27. BIE(E)

(c) BINREH
ARRRENEFERRAEZEHEHEEMAILARRLER
RA) - B ERCGARSBEESH o AR RERE R LR
SRS B 2 B T AR R B R 2 B S B R P 2R A R ARE M AKX
3 FER AN ILBE LB BTSN -

(d) A [ 7 1t 388 {7

A B RS 2 B A TS B A RIEIMEEERZIRA
BADREAT%(ZZE——F : 17%) @ S B A g E R ([ 18
ER])  BEEHOSETESREREORHOFBCRMERA
9% FE13%(—F— 4 : 9%ZE13%) o st E AUk E /FE 1% E
B AN - REB R S TR E T A AR A S R
B EH -

(e) RAFFEH

REHTE  B—FTZN\F—A -0 BFEIEHEIEIR
BEENREBIZI0BHHERIMEN - ZESR_FTNEF
—A—HEBER TEAR-_ZEZELF+-_RA=t+—HZ®&M
EEMBNDR - MR BEEIHIREEMELREEKTRK
WE - MARAEENRIMAERHEE - AREERNHHES
10% ° Bt - B=ZZEN\F—A - A AEERBRIAEF
B Y FY 8 B R Bt & (R R P EE A A B REREIE TSR ALE -

RSB ABRHADEF G EZHIE - BRABAHE
RBENERNIMEFAREAEMELENERTEA
FEEZRE  HERWNT

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET T ARETT
Profit before taxation FR 151 A A A 198,164 163,736
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates REERRERER 2
applicable to profits in the respective EHREAE IR
countries 40,789 26,564
Expense not deductible for tax purposes 7~ A] 17 H) & 339 3,651
Under/(over) provision in previous year — MABTEE D&t/ (Z5H) 2 B8 603 (61)
Withholding tax on dividends of the PRC 1 EWEB AT 2 EEBE T2
subsidiaries RAFFER 5,000 4,200
Tax losses for which no deferred tax A ERIELERIE
asset was recognised BEEMTE 1,985 1,569
Recognition of previously unrecognised — #£:2-F Al &< FE 2
tax loss EopyTEi! = 9)
Tax charge RIEX W 48,716 35,914
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27. Taxation (continued)

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 20.6% (2012:
16.2%).

Included in the tax losses as at 31 December 2013 was a loss of
RMB26,220,000 (2012: RMB24,079,000) that will expire during
the period from 2014 to 2018 (2012: 2013 to 2017), while other
losses can be carried forward indefinitely. The deferred tax benefit
of such tax losses has not been recognised as it is not probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
unutilised tax losses can be utilised, or the amounts attributable
to specific subsidiaries are insignificant.

28. Net foreign exchange gains

The exchange differences charged in the consolidated income
statement are included as follows:

27. BiwE(E)
BRAMETEH R F20.6%( 2 ——4F :16.2%) °

R_E—=F+_A=+—BZHREEEREESA
26,220,000t A REE(=ZF— =4 : 24,079,000
ARE)  #£EHEN2014FE2018F (T — =
F:ZE—=FE_T—+F)HER  HiEiEH|
AEREALE - BRI TR RA BRI T
AIARE B2 HISEIBIKE - sz B ERIK B
AR RE Bt E BB ER 2 EERERNTD
I ERERALE o

28. [E WA
EAGHEERP MR ELZHOEE TFIEAN ;

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBT T

Other (losses)/gains — net (Note 23) Hh (BR), Mz — F&E(MisE23) (4,932) (86)
Finance costs — net (Note 26) B A — 558 (M 7E26) 9,666 119
4,734 33

29. Profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
RMB27,494,000 (2012: RMB21,480,000).

20. BABBRARAREZEEE

BHEBRARREREEENRARRYERE T
TR R EEE A27,494,000 T A RIE(— B — — £ ¢
21,480,000 A R#E) o
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30. Earnings per share

Basic HAR

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

BRERBNDREZERARRREFEZHEHN -
BRAFAEETERROMEFOREE

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Profit attributable to owners of the mAEEN AN S
Company 149,425 127,942
Weighted average number of ordinary B BT AR hiE
shares in issue (thousands) g B (F5h) 483,378 483,488
Basic earnings per share (RMB per share) SFI&EA 2 F| (G A REE) 30.9 Centsfll | 26.5 Centsil

Diluted e

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The dilutive
potential ordinary shares of the Company mainly comprises
the share options. A calculation is made in order to determine
the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair
value (determined as the average monthly market share price
of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary value of the
subscription rights attached to outstanding share options. The
number of shares calculated as above is compared with the
number of shares that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the share options.

TSR R R RAA A #E R B S B LR
& RIBED BT ERRNINEFOREBGE - AR
AAEENEE LT B2 REBRE - RIBERTT
EREBEMMORBENEREER BERAAE
BE(BE/RNAARMNMNFIHAREHE)JTHEANK
MBE - MALTAAENRNDEE - BRJZEK
BITEMECETHRNBBFLLR -

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARBT T
Profit attributable to owners of the ekl N NN
Company wEE 149,425 127,942
Weighted average number of ordinary BETEERNINEFEEE
shares in issue (thousands) (F&0) 483,378 483,488
Adjustments assuming the exercise of 2R B IR AR 1T
share options (thousands) KA (F&H) 1,037 593
Weighted average number of ordinary STESREEAT
shares for diluted earnings per share B 3R AR B9 N
(thousands) FHEE (F5H) 484,415 484,081
Diluted earnings per share (RMB per share) &A% 258 & 7| (G A RI) 30.8 Centsfll | 26.4 Centsfl
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31. Dividends

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2013 of HK7.1 cents per share, totalling approximately of
RMB27,174,000, is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. These financial statements do not reflect such
dividend payable.

31. KRE

REVERITZRRBFERE £ - ﬁ%ﬁ%‘c?ﬁ:%—?

$+ﬂ

T— B FE IR RS

FIRT7A8

il » & 3£ #927,174,0007C A R # © Hﬂ%iﬁ%wéﬁfﬁ

BRI FE AR, ©

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Interim dividend paid of HK1.49 cents BIRH HHHQ BRI mR1.4981
(2012: HK1 cent) per ordinary share (ZZT——%F 173810 5,729 3,951
Proposed final dividend of HK7.1 cents BUR A B 8.3 A AR 7 A 7S
(2012: HK4.1 cents) per ordinary share (ZZE—=F  4.1580) 27,174 16,013
32,903 19,964

32. Cash generated from operations

32. REXBKELCHE

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Profit for the year AN E i A 149,448 127,822
Adjustments for: FEIEE -
— Taxation (Note 27) —FiIE (M sE27) 48,716 35,914
— Depreciation (Note 7) — Y& (M5E7) 38,555 34,750
— Amortisation of: —HEE AT IR
- Land use rights (Note 6) — T AR (HI5E6) 231 231
- Intangible assets (Note 8) — | A E (FIFE8) 7,905 9,320
— Provision for impairment of intangible — B EERE
assets (Note 8) BB (P EES) - 2,353
— Provision for impairment of property, — W - B R 2 R E RS
plant and equipment (Note 7) (I #E7) 1,329 -
- Loss on disposal of property, —HEME  BEMRBEZEE
plant and equipment (see below) (RTx) 148 1
- Interest income (Note 26) —FBWA (F3F26) (6,947) (6,761)
— Interest expense on bank borrowings  —RITIEERERFEZRZ A B
and government loans (Note 26) (MI5E26) 37,161 30,373
— Share of loss from an associate (Note 10) —Z B Ht< EiE{(n%a (M3E10) 474 267
— Gain on disposal of investment in an —HEBERE 2 W (MEE10)
associate (Note 10) (622) -
- Fair value losses/(gains) on derivative ~ —fT4 4@ LB QA BEEIE
financial instruments (Note 23) (U ) (FTs¥23) 1,427 (3,167)
Operating profit before working capital LIEESEEAI LR
changes N 277,825 231,103
Changes in working capital: LEESEE)
— Inventories —F5 (34,410) 36,623
- Trade and bills receivables —JEURBR K (147,842) (15,226)
- Prepayments and other receivables — FEAT 3R N E A UK (22,143) (3,307)
— Amount due from related companies — FERER RS 5 R (2,439) -
- Pledged bank deposits — BRI T K 66,179 12,717
- Trade payables and bills payable —ENERRENEE (162,409) 25,624
- Accruals and other payables —FEET B A R H AL FET X (1,212) 1,015
Cash (used in)/generated from operations &&EKELX 2R (26,451) 288,549
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32. Cash generated from operations (continued)

In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from disposal
of property, plant and equipment comprise:

32. BEXBELEZRE(E)

REHFAZRER  LWEWE BMERRBMENX
HEREATEEA :

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARETTT

Net book amount (Note 7) BREFE(ME7) 155 118
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BENMERE

plant and equipment ZEE (148) 1)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BE ME&E

plant and equipment A8 518 7 117

33. Commitments - Group

(a) Capital commitments

33. EE—£
(a) BAREE

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT

Capital commitments contracted but not RABEHARDEEN DL

provided for at end of the reporting MBERFEZ T
period are as follows:
— Construction-in-progress and —TEETRARYE - BE

property, plant and equipment K&k 2,402 1,484
- Product development projects —EmAEtE 21,800 14,900
- Land use rights (Note) — b A RE (B RE) = 30,000
— Other assets (Note 14) —Hi&EE(KIFE14) 9,600 -

33,802 46,384

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has no significant
commitments authorised but not contracted for (2012: Nil).

Note:

In December 2012, the Group entered into an investment agreement with a
local government body in Fujian, namely @ BN EEELEEMEREEZ S,
in regard to the construction locally of a plant in Gulei port for the production
of petroleum products (the “Agreement”). According to the Agreement, the
local government will grant the right to use a piece of land in Gulei port with a
planned total area of 1,000 acres.
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33. Commitments - Group (continued)

(a) Capital commitments (continued)
Note: (continued)

According to the original plan, the project will be carried out by means of
different phases spreading over a number of years. The Group has to obtain
the related land use rights and the price of the rights has to be determined by
means of a public auction to be put by the local government. The first phase
of the project will be conducted on the first piece of land with an approximate
area of 300 acres. A deposit in relation to this first piece of land of RMB9 million
was paid in January 2013. The deposit of the land use rights relating to the
remaining 700 acres of RMB21 million was paid in August 2013. In accordance
with the requirements of the relevant land administration, it is required to go
through the tendering, auction and listing-for-sale procedures, which in turn
will require the land to undergo the process of desilting and backfilling, and
to obtain an environmental assessment. However, the initial location failed to
meet neither of these requirements. In view of this, the Group has submitted
an application to the local government body for selecting a new location. As at
31 December 2013, the application was pending a formal reply from the local
government.

As on 31 December 2013, the Company has no capital commitment (2012:
Nil).

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases certain premises under non-cancellable
operating lease agreements in respect of property, plant and
equipment. The lease have varying terms, escalation clauses
and renewal rights. The lease expenditure expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the year is disclosed in
Note 24.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

33. FE-£B(E)

() EFXEEE)
Bt : ()

ZRRAFE HESHZHET  BEEZEBAREFZ
A-HABREBA  AEENERCSHEEN T HERE  ma
BERAENEREEABMUEARNEE - HBEHHE BT
BT - HEF —HIRERE I8 = EFEAS00m A 1y
WE#ST o BB AL S AR 9,000,000tER =T —
=F—RA&NM  fT700EM K HIERENES AARK
21,000,000;tER =T —=F NAXM - RELHEFIOR
T B ARIAH B S 5ok B R E R BHE R IR R AT
HERABIL D REFEULEMBENR - GERL - EEEWE
ZeREHFEFREL HE-_T—=F1+-A=1+—H8 %
BB HEBFEA X ETE -

WoE—Z#+-A=+—8  FARRECEEFAE( T
——%F i fm) -

(b) REEHEYEE
AEERBEZHDTAIBENKCEHERZHERAET
ME - BB REE o 2SR 2GR - HEARK
RRBHOEFRT— - FRRAFRERIHEZEE
S TEMIFE24 3 55 o

RBE AT HGHC L E
N

AR FEBE N KARLN

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFTT

Not later than 1 year BB —F 3,662 3,079
Later than 1 year and not later BB —FE T BB AF

than 5 years 4,913 2,380

8,575 5,459

As on 31 December 2013, the Company has no operating lease
commitment (2012: Nil).

R-Z—=F+-"A=+—8  AEEHFETHL
EHNAR(ZE——F &)
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34. Contingent liabilities - Group

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities.

As at 31 December 2013, the Company has provided
corporate guarantees to support banking facilities granted to
certain subsidiaries amounting to RMB671,265,000 (2012:
RMB509,987,000) among which RMB166,614,000 (2012:
RMB208,525,000) has been utilised by the subsidiaries.

35. Related party transactions

The Company is 41% owned by Marietta Limited (incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands) which is owned by Mr. Yang Yirong.

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

34. FAREE-KE

R-E—=F+"A=+—B ~5EHEEFZE
RZBEAREME -

RZZE—Z=F+-_A=+—8 AQAAREFEX
L B A 71671,265,000 T A REE(—F — —4F :
509,987,0007C A R¥&) HyER1TRb & REE 1E I A A&
R-N-_T—=F+-"F=+—H0 WBAFZE
FBiR1TH S %EE166,614,000 AR (=ZF——
£ 1 208,525,0007C A RE) o

35. EEEARS

RRARZMN%ERE—EERREEREAEZEER
7 BB FEM A 2 A B] —Marietta Limited#% A& °

HEIM T ETHR ST ¢

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT

Sales of goods to an associate: BEmidE T —EE 1,824 1,824
Subcontracting fee payable to an associate  JE{T—RB& 2 T & 895 -
Payments made on behalf of a related party X —{E@H 2 1,510 -

In the opinion of the Directors, the above transactions were
carried out in the normal course of the Group's business, and
conducted at terms mutually agreed by the respective parties.
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35. Related party transactions (continued) 35. BEEAXS (&)
(a) Key management compensation (a) FEREEAEHMSE

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT

Salaries and other short-term employee  #& R HEMEHHEES

benefits & H 9,613 9,189
Total Bzt 9,613 9,189
(b) Amounts due from related companies (b) FEWEELNRE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT

Amounts due from related companies JfE U RA B 5 708 2,439 -

As at 31 December 2013, the balances are unsecured, interest- R-ZT—=F+_A=+—H ZELAEXKH . . &

free and are repayable on demand. BERARERER -
(c) Amount due to a director (c) ENf—{uESEHE
The details of the amount due to a director are as follows: B —RIEFRIEOFEOT :

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBETT

Mr. Yang Yirong BR R E 791 770

The amount due to a director is unsecured, non-interest bearing B N EFZFIBEREERT - RELARERE
and is repayable on demand. & e
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Five Year Financial Summary
EEUBEHE

Results =45

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEE

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 |  RMB’000
ARBTL  ARETT ARBTT ARBTR | ARBTR

Revenue WA 728,494 908,251 1,074,688 1,057,371 | 1,227,295
Operating profit Ryl 137,014 164,083 150,477 187,496 219,186
Finance costs BN (16,036) (11,906) (8,599) (23,493) (20,548)
Share of loss of an associate EihBLER - - (59) (267) (474)
Profit before taxation BRATER 120,978 152,177 141,819 163,736 198,164
Taxation BIE (13,296) (22,108) (23,084) (35,914) (48,716)
Profit for the year FERH 107,682 130,069 118,735 127,822 149,448
Profit attributable to: BREBR

Owners of the Company AREEEE 107,471 130,103 119,058 127,942 149,425
Non-controlling interests eV RE RS 21 (34) (323) (120) 23

107,682 130,069 118,735 127,822 149,448

Dividends & 15,553 19,017 18,395 19,964 32,903

Earnings per share (RMB cents) FREN(HARE)

Basic E-9iN 23.1 28.0 24.6 26.5 30.9

Diluted 3 22.9 27.3 24.4 26.4 30.8
Financial Positions B FEAR

Year ended 31 December

HEt-A=t-HLEE

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARE®EFT AR®Fr ARETT | ARETR

Non-current assets ERBEE 453,365 461,494 454,133 454,915 466,062
Current assets MEEE 862,757 1,087,770 1,337,414 1,556,115 | 1,761,607
Total assets BEAE 1,316,122 1,549,264 1,791,547 2,011,030 | 2,227,669
Non-current liabilities EFEBE 111,536 195,320 129,669 20,500 325,784
Current liabilities MEAE 360,601 392,966 582,043 801,363 585,070
Total liabilities afweE 472,137 588,286 711,712 821,863 910,854
Net assets LETE 843,985 960,978 1,079,835 1,189,167 | 1,316,815
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Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
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in Hong Kong

Suite 3706, 37th Floor
Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Principal share registrar and transfer office

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 1093

Boundary Hall, Cricket Square

Grand Cayman KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Principal bankers

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited
Bank of China Limited

China Citic Bank Corporation Limited

China Merchants Bank Co. Limited

China Minsheng Banking Corp. Limited

China Citic Bank International Limited

Hang Seng Bank, Limited

Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
KBC Bank N.V.

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

\ 128 \ ECOGREEN FINE CHEMICALS GROUP LIMITED » shig3E#{t TEMBER AT

\ Corporate Information ¢ QAT)&E¥

A EE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PMSERTBIEERMHR

BEEET
B E 1855
FIRES
37183706 %

RAE P &R

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 1093

Boundary Hall, Cricket Square

Grand Cayman KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

BRNBFELCEEREDRE

PEERRERAA
BEBET
ERKNER1835%
AR 221

FEERRAT

PEERERITROAER AR
BRITRITREAR AR
FEIRTTIRDBER AT
FIERITIRDER AT
BREBRITROARAR
PRERAERITROER A
FERT(BEBR)BRAF]
BAERITARDA
EELEESRITARAA
L MBS B & 2R 1T
BITIRIT(BEB)AR AR



www.gennexfm.com

st EVRIREUME  BERIIEIREBERAR

s

Design, Printing & Production : GenNex Financial Media Limited

Shareholder Information

Listing: Listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
since 9 March 2004

Stock Code: 2341

Board Lot: 2,000

Par Value: HK$0.1

Trading Currency: HK$

Financial calendar 2014

Financial year ended
Full year results announced
Register of members closed
(for ascertaining shareholders’ rights to attend
and vote at annual general meeting)
Annual general meeting
Ex-dividend date for final dividend
Register of members closed
(for determining entitlement to final dividend)
Record date for final dividend
Despatch of dividend warrants
Interim results to be announced

31 December 2013
25 March 2014
27-28 May 2014

28 May 2014
6 June 2014
10-12 June 2014

12 June 2014
on or about 11 July 2014
end of August 2014*

* subject to change

Final dividend

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of 7.1 HK cents per ordinary
share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2013. Subject to shareholders’
approval, the final dividend will be paid in cash to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Thursday, 12 June 2014.

Dividend warrants will be despatched to shareholders on or about Friday, 11 July 2014.

Closure of register of members for final dividend

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to the final dividend in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2013, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Tuesday, 10 June 2014 to Thursday, 12 June 2014, both days
inclusive. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Hong
Kong branch share registrar of the Company, Tricor Tengis Limited, not later than
4.30 p.m. on Monday, 9 June 2014.

Closure of register of members for annual general meeting

For the purpose of ascertaining the shareholders’ rights of attending and voting at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Tuesday, 27 May 2014 to Wednesday, 28 May 2014, both days
inclusive. In order to be entitled to attend the annual general meeting, all completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Hong Kong branch share registrar of the Company, Tricor Tengis Limited, not
later than 4.30 p.m. on Monday, 26 May 2014.

Shareholder services

For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar:

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone : (852) 2980 1333

Facsimile : (852) 2810 8185

Email 1 is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Holders of the Company’s shares should notify the Hong Kong branch share
registrar promptly of any change of addresses.

Investor relations
For enquiries relating to investor relations, please contact:

EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Group Limited
Suite 3706, 37th Floor, Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone : (852) 2530 0609

Facsimile : (852) 2530 0619

Email 1 ecogreen@ecogreen.com
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' EcoGreen

EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Group Limited

R EHAIETIEEABRAR

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RS MKz BRAF)

Suite 3706, 37th Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BEBTEEE 18 SR IRES 37 12 3706 =

Tel &% : 2530 0609
Fax f8& : 2530 0619

www.ecogreen.com

* For identification purposes only
* EHET
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